
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Minutes 


City of Fayetteville/Fayette County Called Work Session 


Fayette County Commission Chambers 


West Fayetteville/Pinewood Atlanta Annexations 


July 9, 2013 


5:30 p.m. 


 
Fayette County Commissioners Present:  Steve Brown, Chairman 


       Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman 
       David Barlow 
       Allen McCarty 
       Randy Ognio 
 


Fayetteville City Council Present:   Greg Clifton, Mayor 
       Larry Dell, Mayor Pro Tem 
       Mickey Edwards 
       Ed Johnson 
       Paul Oddo, Jr. 
       Walt White 
 


Staff Present:     Steve Rapson, County Administrator 
       Joe Morton, Fayetteville City Manager 
       Floyd Jones, County Clerk 
       Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney 
       Tameca White, Executive Assistant 
       Pete Frisina, Community Development Coordinator 
       Brian Wismer, Fayetteville Director of Community  


  Development 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
   
  


1. Call to Order – Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown  
 


Chairman Steve Brown called the City of Fayetteville / Fayette County Called Work Session to order at 5:32 
p.m.   
 
Throughout this meeting, the various speakers presented portions of a comprehensive PowerPoint 
presentation.  A copy of the PowerPoint, identified as “Attachment 1”, follows these minutes and is made an 
official part hereof. 


 
2. Opening Comments – Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown and Fayetteville Mayor 


Greg Clifton 
 


Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown and Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton gave opening 
comments based on the first sixteen pages of the PowerPoint Presentation. 
 
 
 
 


3. History and Overview of West Fayetteville Area  – Matt Forshee, President and CEO, Fayette County 
Development Authority (FCDA) 







Minutes 
Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville 
July 9, 2013 
Page Number 2 


 


 
Mr. Matt Forshee, President and CEO of the Fayette County Development Authority, provided the history 
and an overview of the West Fayetteville Area.  Mr. Forshee’s comments entailed pages 17 through 26 of 
the comprehensive PowerPoint presentation. 
 


4. West Fayetteville Master Plan Update – Aaron Daily, Historical Concepts 
 


Mr. Todd Strickland of Historical Concepts gave some brief remarks about the West Fayetteville Master 
Plan. 
 
Mr. Ryan Yurcaba updated the attendees about the West Fayetteville Master Plan.  He utilized pages 27 
through 54 of the comprehensive PowerPoint presentation. 


 
5. Annexation Process Update and Overview of Intergovernmental Agreement Between City of 


Fayetteville and Fayette County  – Brian Wismer, Fayetteville Director of Community Development 
and Pete Frisina, Fayette County Director of Planning and Zoning 


 
Fayetteville Director of Community Development Brian Wismer and Fayette County Director of Planning and 
Zoning Pete Frisina reported on the annexation process and gave an overview of the Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County.  For their discussion, they used pages 55-
66 of the comprehensive PowerPoint presentation. 
 


6. Public Comments 
 


Bill Foley:  Mr. Foley, who “is doing the Pinewood design”, began by saying he was the only one available 
“from any of the development team”, as everybody else was working or trying to beat the rain.  He said they 
did want to support and tell everybody at the city that they have been working with the city and the county, 
and he told everyone that the proposed agreement between the city and county is very much in favorable 
and beneficial to both sides.  He praised both the city and the county staffs who have worked everything 
through.  He said they totally support the agreement and the way it is going, it’s planning, and everything 
that has happened.  He said the development team wanted to endorse everybody in the team who has been 
involved, and he hoped the effort would continue and be approved.   


 
Chairman Brown:  Chairman Brown informed everyone that there was a meeting with the cities a couple of 
days ago related to the Core Infrastructure SPLOST.  He said the Board of Commissioners said the County 
was only going to do Stormwater projects, and that the County was going to stick to that promise that was 
made to the constituents.  He stated that the County actually came out under its proposed budget for 
Stormwater; giving the County a significant balance.  He said the Board has informed the cities that it is 
willing to give those monies to the cities so that the cities can do projects that need to be done and that will 
help them fulfill the rest of their list.  He asked for some of the funds that would be going to Fayetteville 
related to the tunnel either at Sandy Creek or Veterans Parkway would be used to fund the tunnels and 
much more.  He asked the City of Fayetteville to use some of the funds to help with the tunnel, and he said 
the County would help in any way that it could.  He pointed out that the County has already agreed to do all 
the earthwork, cut the road, insert culverts, and do everything else that it could do.  He asked the city to 
consider his request. 
 
 
Commissioner Ognio:  Commissioner Ognio understood that this issue had been hard fought for an 
Intergovernmental Agreement, and he thought that it worked out for both sides.  That said, Commissioner 
Ognio said he was a little disappointed in the City of Fayetteville on the annexation since he did not think the 
city should be annexing as much as they are even though the county did not have much say in the matter.  
He hoped that the development could be slowed “on the other side of Veterans Parkway”, and he thought it 
would be slower if it did not have access to sewer on that side.  Commissioner Ognio said everyone needed 







Minutes 
Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville 
July 9, 2013 
Page Number 3 


 


to keep in mind what would be done to the rest of Fayetteville if the property develops, and he was worried 
that the proposed developments would work to cause existing structures in Fayetteville to “become empty” 
since they would not be as close to the financial activity.  He hoped all of the proposals worked out to the 
best, but he wanted to voice his opposition to the annexation of the property on the other side of Veterans 
Parkway.   


 
Mayor Clifton:  Mayor Clifton responded to Commissioner Ognio’s comments by explaining that the sewer 
actually “would not be extended over that far.”  He said the initial phase of the sewer is only going to get to 
the Pinewood site.  He said the sewer would not be extended until there was some project that needs it and 
provides the funding for it.  He anticipated that the plans would help to slow down the development 
whenever a development is on the west side of Veteran’s Parkway. 


 
Commissioner Ognio:  Commissioner Ognio replied that, as he saw it, the city could always annex the 
property later, and that he did not see the need to annex the property to make sewer available.  He 
explained that if the property were in the city then sewer would be available to it. 


 
Mayor Clifton:  Mayor Clifton agreed that sewer could be made available to city property, but the 
developers have requested annexation and the city did not solicit the request.  He added that the Board of 
Education is also interested in annexing; hoping it would increase their property value and then they could 
unload the school site.   
 
Chairman Brown asked  the City of Fayetteville’s Public Services Director, Chris Hindman, to briefly tell how 
the sewers would “come into play” and what properties would be involved. 


 
Public Services Director Chris Hindman:  Mr. Hindman said that currently the sewer is being designed to 
have a lift station on the Williams property to pump the sewer across the street to an existing sewer line.  He 
said that from the lift station, there would be a sewer line that comes up to Sandy Creek; however, the 
design is still being worked out.  He added that a manhole would be installed for the Pinewood site.  He 
added that any future sewer expansion in the area would be provided by the developer, so the city is 
fronting the cost for Phase I of the sewer and then it would be proportionately shared back to each property 
owner as they tie onto the sewer.  He stated that the city would actually recover its cost for the sewer in the 
area. 
 
County Administrator Steve Rapson:  County Administrator Steve Rapson said he wanted to personally 
thank Fayetteville City Manager Joe Morton and his staff, as well as Allen and Brian, in regards to all that 
has come together.  He explained that this was a great example of how Fayette County can work with 
Fayetteville to the benefit of all Fayette County. 
 
Chairman Brown:  Chairman Brown said that one aspect that has changed in the county is that the county 
realizes that the cities are actually beneficial to the county.  He said that when the cities do well, the county 
does well.  He thought that was a great perspective to have.  He said the County wanted the city to do well, 
and that the county does well when the city does well.   
 
Commissioner McCarty:  Commissioner McCarty said he has worked all over the county building 
television stations and studios, and that he was glad to see that Fayette County has the opportunity, now, to 
fix things, to control the growth in the County in a very positive direction.  He said it was beneficial to the 
cities, but it was also a benefit to the County.  He was glad everyone was working together to help 
accomplish the project. 
 
Commissioner Oddo:  Commissioner Oddo agreed that it was quite amazing to the county and city work 
together on this project.  He said the real concern that he had, and that this concern would rest with the City 
of Fayetteville, was that Pinewood initially liked the property because it was “kind of country”.  He cautioned 
the city not to overdevelop, and to try, as best as possible, to control the growth.  He clarified that he is not 







Minutes 
Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville 
July 9, 2013 
Page Number 4 


 


against growth, but he wanted to control it as best as possible.  He wanted to make sure that the city looked 
at that issue, and to consider what was going to happen to the area if it becomes too dense.  He suggested 
that consideration should be given to less dense development around the area.  He added that there should 
be some thought to keep the rural flavor that the location currently has. 
 
Joe Strickland:  Mr. Joe Strickland of Historical Concepts said one of the things that were appreciated in 
the area was the old farm that was there, and the old barn that was there.  He said this issue reached back 
to five or six years ago, and that Historical Concepts has proposed to save the barn, to save the barn behind 
it, and to put in another home in order to create what was the old Fayette County; which was many years 
ago.  He said Historical Concept was trying to maintain that rural flavor.  He also explained other proposals 
that would retain the wonderful things that everyone likes about Fayette County.  He agreed that change 
would come to Fayette County, and so the effort was to ensure that the change is a good change and is a 
change that everyone could be proud of. 
 
Mayor Clifton:  Mayor Clifton responded to Commissioner Oddo’s concerns about mass development.  He 
stated that the zoning that is being developed is going to be very restricted with a very limited amount of 
housing.  He anticipated that there would need to be some housing for students who will be attending the 
university facility, and maybe some housing for employees of the Pinewood project, however; there are 
plenty of places within the city and county where residential space is available.  He said this was such a 
valuable area in order to make a corporate campus situation with much higher tax value.  He said the city 
really did not want to put many houses in the area.  He anticipated that the city would stick to their guns on 
the issue, and restrict the area heavily. 
 


7. Closing Comments – Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown and Fayetteville Mayor 
Greg Clifton  


 
Chairman Brown thanked everyone for attending the meeting, and asked everyone who has questions to 
come up, see the displays, and ask those questions. 
 
At no point during this meeting was a motion made or official direction given to staff. 
 
Chairman Brown concluded the Joint Meeting concluded at 6:48 p.m. 
 
 
 


___________________________________                               __________________________________________ 
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                      Steve Brown, Chairman 
 
The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, 
Georgia, held on the 25th day of July 2013. 
 
 
___________________________________   


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk      








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


July 9, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on July 9, 2013 at 7:30 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


________________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the July 9, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:35 p.m.
Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton offered the Invocation.
Commissioner Randy Ognio led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the Agenda.  Commissioners Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Grandparents and Kin Raising Children, Incorporated.


Commissioner David Barlow read the Recognition for Grandparents and Kin Raising Children, Incorporated.


Ms. Queen Gordy, who serves as Coordinator of Grandparents and Kin Raising Children, Inc. (GKRC),
thanked Commissioner Barlow and the Fayette County Commissioners for their recognition.  She told
everyone that GKRC began under Fayette FACTOR’s umbrella, and Fayette FACTOR helped GKRC
become a 501(c)3.  She explained that GKRC is partnered with A.V. Pride, and is supported from several
churches.  She informed everyone that GKRC meets on the second and fourth Thursday of every month at
Covenant Presbyterian Church, and that GKRC is supported with money and supplies from Grace
Evangelical Church and Olivet Baptist Church, respectively.  Ms. Gordy said she met Commissioner Barlow
through Fayette FACTOR, and that through Commissioner Barlow and Fayette FACTOR, GKRC is being
exposed to Fayette County.







Minutes
July 9, 2013
Page Number 2


Commissioner Barlow commented that GKRC does not receive state or federal benefits, and that the
grandparents and kin are taking the responsibility of their grandchildren and great-grandchildren.  He said
there was no funding available to them, and so everything that they have achieved has been done through
the support of the good citizens of Fayette County who reach out to them and help them raise their
grandchildren and their great-grandchildren.  He said he honored God for their presence at the meeting
because they were doing an unbelievable work.  A copy of the Recognition, identified as “Attachment 1",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


There was no Public Hearing.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


No one spoke during Public Comment.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Oddo asked to remove Consent Agenda Item 3 for discussion.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept the Consent Agenda as presented with the exception of Consent Agenda Item
Number 3.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt the Georgia Department of Transportation’s Contract
for Acquisition of Right-of-Way for the McIntosh Road Bridge Replacement Project (SPLOST No. B-
6), and authorization for the Chairman to sign said contract and related documents.  A copy of the
request and contract, identified as “Attachment 2", follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to approve Ordinance 2013-09 amending the Code of
Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia by establishing operating regulations for Lake McIntosh,
repealing conflicting ordinances, providing severability, and promoting the public health, safety and
welfare, and other purposes.


Commissioner Oddo said that as he reviewed the material, and based on questions from some of the
citizens, questions came up about the proposed rules and regulations such as why there is no bodily
contact allowed with the water.  He asked Water System Director Tony Parrott to explain why the rules are
as they are, and he pointed out that there were other parks where a person could swim.  Chairman Brown
offered that Lake McIntosh is a water reservoir; meaning it is a water source and not just a recreational
lake.


Mr. Parrott answered that the Georgia Department of Natural Resources’ (DNR) Drinking Water Program
has rules and regulations concerning drinking water reservoirs that have been built since a certain period of
time.  He explained that Lake Peachtree was grand-fathered because it was built before the rules and
regulations came into play, and so bodily contact is allowed with the water at Lake Peachtree.  He added
that the City of Peachtree City also owns Lake Peachtree and that the city passed the rules for the lake.  He







Minutes
July 9, 2013
Page Number 3


further explained that Lake Kedron and Lake Horton, since they are County reservoirs built after the DNR
enacted its regulations, have the same guidelines that are proposed for Lake McIntosh; meaning there is no
beach and there is no bodily contact.  He said boating is allowed, but motorboats are not allowed on the
lake.  He pointed out that a person could have a motor boat and could ski in Lake Peachtree, but that was
only possible because Lake Peachtree was built in the early 1960s.  He explained that the rules are for
drinking water reservoirs of certain sizes, and that there are limitations on what can and cannot be done. 
He explained that Lake Lanier is a drinking water reservoir, but because of its size, which is more than the
650 acres at Lake McIntosh, it is allowed to have motorboats and beaches. Discussion followed.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept Consent Agenda Item Number 3 as presented in the Agenda. 
Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request and Ordinance 2013-09, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-10 amending the Code of Ordinances
for Fayette County by revising provisions pertaining to authority to waive procedures and fee
structures in emergencies, providing an effective date, repealing conflicting ordinances, providing
severability, promoting public health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.  A copy of the
request and Ordinance 2013-10, identified as “Attachment 4", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


5. Approval of the June 27, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


There was no Old Business.


NEW BUSINESS:


6. Consideration of staff’s request for proposed intersection improvements at State Route 85 and Harp
Road, including authorization to resume work on the project, to agree to Fayette County making
improvements on Harp Road in exchange for GDOT to install the traffic signal, to authorize Mallett
Consulting to complete the design, and to authorize the County to acquire right-of-ways and
easements.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon reported that this project was first initiated nearly eight years ago, but
because it includes an intersection improvement on a state route, the County needed the Georgia
Department of Transportation’s (GDOT) approval before a traffic signal could be installed.  He reported that
earlier this year, GDOT determined that a signal is warranted.  He said this request was for authorization for
the Chairman to sign the application needed for the permit.  He added that, due to the amount of time this
project has taken, that he thought it was appropriate to bring the issue back to the Board in order to confirm
that the County wanted to move forward on the project with Mallett Consulting.


Chairman Brown asked Mr. Mallon how much work has Mallett Consulting done on the project.  Mr. Mallon
replied that, from a budgetary perspective, the County has spent just under $20,000, and that much of the
money was spent as an additional service because the County, several times over the eight year period,
collected data to try to get the signal permitted. He said Mallett Consulting prepared some concepts, they







Minutes
July 9, 2013
Page Number 4


were wonderful, and one of them was ultimately approved by GDOT.  He explained that GDOT has told the
County that the County would make improvements on both the east and west side of Harp Road, and those
improvements would include adding a dedicated left-turn lane, through lane, and right-turn lane.  He said
once the County does all the asphalt work, GDOT will install the traffic signal.  Chairman Brown asked if
there was an estimate for what Mallett Consulting’s cost would be to finish the work.  Mr. Mallon replied that
the estimated cost to complete the work was $16,400.00.  Discussion followed concerning the type of traffic
light that would be installed at the intersection, and the Board expressed concerns that traffic could be
slowed along State Route 85.  Mr. Mallon replied that the type of signal that is installed would be entirely to
GDOT, but that the County could make a suggestion on the type of traffic light it wanted.  Mr. Mallon
mentioned that GDOT may accept the County’s suggestion, but that it could make the County pay an
additional cost, if any, if they agreed to the request.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept New Business Item 6 as presented and to authorize for the Chairman
to sign pending attorney review.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and the application to the Georgia Department of
Transportation, identified as “Attachment 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


7. Consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award a bid for Supervisory Control
and Data Collection (SCADA) Upgrades to J.K. Duren Company, Inc., in the amount of $299,500.00,
and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents.


Water System Director Tony Parrott reported that staff has been working on the SCADA project for a long
time in an effort to upgrade the computer system that operates the controls for valves, for water tank levels,
and for pumps.  He explained that the old system that the county currently has is an analog system, and
this upgrade would move the system to digital.  He said staff issued a request, that three companies
showed initial interest, but that the County only had one bidder–J.K. Duren Company, Inc.  He told the
Board that J.K. Duren Company has worked at the water plants before and was involved in the original
system.  He said the Water Committee and the Purchasing Department reviewed the bid, and staff is
recommending that the contract be issued to J.K. Duren Company, Inc. in the amount of $299,500.00.


Chairman Brown asked Mr. Parrott to explain why the County only received one bidder for the project.  Mr.
Parrott replied that three potential bidders picked up the plans for the proposed upgrade, but that two of
them thought that the timeframe involved was too short.  He added that at no point during the process,
when they had an opportunity, did the two non-bidders ever say that they thought there was not enough
time.  He said that issue only came up after Mr. David Jaeger checked with the two potential bidders asking
what was wrong. 


Chairman Brown added that most of the equipment for the upgrades was proprietary in nature since the
company designs it.  He pointed out that J.K. Duren Company was the original designer, and so there was
some understanding that the other companies did not want to touch somebody else’s proprietary work. 
Discussion followed.







Minutes
July 9, 2013
Page Number 5


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation to
award a bid for Supervisory Control and Data Collection (SCADA) upgrades to J.K. Duren Company, Inc., in
the amount of $299,500.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request and contract with J.K. Duren Company, Inc., identified as “Attachment 6", follow these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Purchasing Director Authorized to Sign Titles for Surplus Vehicles:  County Administrator Steve Rapson asked
the Board to authorize Purchasing Director Ted Burgess to sign titles for surplus vehicles.  He explained that the
past practice in previous administrations was that the Purchasing Director had authority to sign titles for surplus cars
that are being sold.  He asked for an official vote on the matter in order to delegate the authority to the Purchasing
Director.


Chairman Brown moved to give Mr. Burgess the ability to sign off on the titles for surplus vehicles.  Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Update on the Jail Evaluation and Cost Assessment:  County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that the
County has put a Request for Proposal (RFP) “on the street” for the Jail Evaluation and Cost Assessment, and that
the bid opening would “come back” on August 6, 2013.  He said this was the project that would use some of the
extra bond proceeds in regards in trying to get the old jail back up to operational status.  


Core Infrastructure SPLOST 2013 Package: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that the County has
released the Core Infrastructure Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) package to the press, and that
the information is at each of the municipalities and the libraries.  He added that there is a copy of the information was
in the Environmental Management Department and in the Administrative Office.  He said that there is a wealth of
information in the package.  He pointed out that a copy was provided to Mr. Dennis Chase as well.  He told the
Board that the package has GIS maps, projects listing, prioritization, costs, pictures, and other information in regards
to the SPLOST that is proposed for stormwater.  He continued that the package entailed $16.8 million in projects,
and that the Chairman would explain what would happen with the residual money based on the estimate of what
SPLOST would bring in.  He said this effort furthered the Board’s commitment pertaining to what was discussed at
the Town Hall Meetings that were held concerning Stormwater issues.  He stated that it further maintained the
Board’s promise since there was nothing in the proposal that was unrelated to stormwater activity.


Update on the Gradall XL4100 Wheeled Excavator:   Commissioner Ognio asked County Administrator Steve
Rapson about the Gradall XL4100 Wheeled Excavator which was placed on the June 27, 2013 Agenda, tabled to
the July 9, 2013 Agenda, and then removed from the Agenda prior to publishing.  Mr. Rapson reported that the
Gradall is currently under evaluation and that staff is actually obtaining quotes in regard to doing an overhaul to the
hydraulic system.  He said he would brief the Board at a future meeting once staff was able to obtain further
information.


Introduction of Intern Jason Girolami: Chairman Brown introduced Mr. Jason Girolami; who is interning with the
Board.  Chairman Brown informed everyone that Mr. Girolami is a Starr’s Mill student who is doing a fabulous job. 
He said the County was “working him to death,” and that he would be ready to go back to school by the time he
finished his internship.  He added that Mr. Girolami would be providing a presentation to the Board at a future
meeting, and he invited the audience to attend in order to see the presentation.   







Minutes
July 9, 2013
Page Number 6


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport stated he had no report and that there were no items for Executive
Session.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow thanked all the grandparents, grandchildren, and great grandchildren
who came to the meeting.  He said what the grandparents were doing was truly a blessing from on high, and he
believed God honors each of them for what they are doing.  He hoped and prayed that their path would be made a
little easier as word goes out about their accomplishments so that the community would step up and help in any way
they can.  


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo quipped to Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport that if he was
going to make any more comments like “there is no Executive Session,” to remember that the chairs that the
Commissioners sit in are very slick and that the Board nearly slipped out of them.  He commented that he was glad
to see people coming to the meetings, but that he really wanted to see more people come to the meetings.  He
asked everyone to encourage their friends to come to the meetings since there is so much to learn about how the
County is working.  He pointed out that while the County is taking advantage of new opportunities to get the word
out, there was nothing quite like being at the meetings and seeing what is going on.  He closed by thanking the
audience for coming to the meeting.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty thanked the grandparents for what they were doing.  He
encouraged them to get their grandchildren to become interested in government.  He asked them to get their
grandchildren involved in what is going on in their communities and in their country.  He explained that there are not
enough young people getting involved although this area is something the young people have to get involved with
and learn about; otherwise they will not like what happens.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio thanked everyone for coming to the meeting and said he would see
them next meeting.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown said the Core Infrastructure SPLOST 2013 projects came about by the Board
reaching out to its constituents.  He explained that there was a Stormwater Utility in place, but that many residents in
unincorporated Fayette County were upset about it and that it was not a popular subject.  Referring to the resolution
located in the back of the meeting room, Chairman Brown explained that one of the first things the current Board did
was to adopt the resolution which states, in part: “We will own the problems.”  He told the audience that while the
current Board did not create the problems, it would address them and take care of them.  He pointed out that some
of the 181 proposed projects were decades old that have not been done, but that the current Board was keeping its
promise by taking care of them.  Chairman Brown reminded everyone that the current Board held three Stormwater
Town Hall Meetings, and that many of the hundreds who showed up asked the Board to consider looking at a
Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax in order to take care of problems and restore the infrastructure.  He added
that the Stormwater fees, from that point forward, would be used to keep the maintenance going.  Chairman Brown
pointed out that the County did not want roads collapsing, and that roads have collapsed in the past requiring
emergency funds to be utilized from other accounts in order to make the repairs.  He explained that having a good
infrastructure would help make Fayette County competitive in the metro-Atlanta area by providing attractive jobs and
high-quality residents.  Chairman Brown explained that the County had an engineering firm that analyzed each
proposed project in several areas including cost and description.  He said the firm’s findings showed that the







Minutes
July 9, 2013
Page Number 7


County’s portion of the projects would cost less than the proposed budget; meaning Fayette County would have a
balance of funding.  He reminded the audience that the Board promised its constituents that it would only do
stormwater projects.  He said since this is a two-year SPLOST for the first time in Fayette County’s history, and
since the Board had said it would only use enough money to do stormwater projects, and since some of the
municipalities did not have adequate funding in the SPLOST to do all the projects they wanted, that the Board, in the
spirit of cooperation, would give the municipalities the opportunity to take some of the money the County was unable
to use.  He added that the municipalities could decide how they wanted to divvy up the funds and how they would
use the funds, but that this was an opportunity for the County to help its sister communities and cities to get
everything done on their lists.  He closed by saying the County was proud to be a part of that and to do that, that the
County was proud of its cities, that the County enjoys its working relationships with the cities, and that this is just
another way to say “thank you” to the cities.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn the July 9, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Oddo
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The July 9, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 8:11 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 25th day of July 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


July 25, 2013


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition by Mr. Christopher Dunn, contributing writer of Fayette Game


Day Youth Sports Magazine, of Mr. Brad Hort and Ms. Gabby Seiler as


Fayette County’s Athletes of the Year.


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of staff’s request to approve a new beer and wine package


sales license for Amir Shahzad operating as BP Kenwood at 1866 Ga


Hwy. 85 N., Fayetteville, Georgia 30214.


3. Consideration of Petition RDP-010-13 requesting approval of the Revised


Development Plan for Ballard’s Terrace Subdivision to change the


proposed Community Clubhouse containing a pool and cabana to a


Landscaped Park consisting of 1.62 acres.


4. Consideration of Ordinance 2013-05, consisting of either Option 1 or


Option 2, adopting proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of


Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III, Definitions and


Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Business District regarding building


height.


5. Consideration of Ordinance 2013-06 adopting proposed amendments to


the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance,


Article V, Sec. 5-16., regarding church or place of worship structures


permitted above the height limit.


6. Consideration of Ordinance 2013-07 adopting proposed amendments to


the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance,


Article V, Sec. 5-20., regarding accessory structure size in residential


zoning districts.


7. Consideration of Ordinance 2013-08 adopting proposed amendments to


the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance,


Article VII, Sec. 7-1., regarding church and / or other place of worship and


existing residential structures that do not meet the Conditional Use


setbacks and / or buffers.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
July 25, 2013
Page Number 2


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


8. Consideration of the City of Fayetteville’s request to annex 21 properties totaling about 1,200 acres located


in the area of Veterans Parkway, Sandy Creek Road, SR 54 West, Tyrone Road, South Sandy Creek Road


and Hood Road, to rezone said properties from A-R, R-70 and G-B (County Zoning) to R-70 and PCD (City


Zoning), and to enter into an Annexation Consent Agreement between all parties.


9. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to enter into a Permitting and Inspection Services Agreement


between the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County, for the purpose of the County providing building


inspection services to the City, and for other purposes.


10. Approval of staff’s request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville


allowing the Fayette County Board of Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in


Fayetteville in 2013, and authorization for the Chairman to sign said Intergovernmental Agreement.


11. Approval of staff’s request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Peachtree City


allowing the Fayette County Board of Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in


Peachtree City in 2013, and authorization for the Chairman to sign said Intergovernmental Agreement.


12. Approval of staff’s request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Tyrone allowing


the Fayette County Board of Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in Tyrone,


and authorization for the Chairman to sign said Intergovernmental Agreement.


13. Approval of staff’s request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Woolsey allowing


the Fayette County Board of Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in


Woolsey in 2013, and authorization for the Chairman to sign said Intergovernmental Agreement.


14. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to authorize the Chairman to sign the annual Equitable Sharing Agreement 


and Certification document, as required by the United States Department of Justice and the United States


Department of the Treasury.


15. Approval of staff’s request to approve and submit both a pre-application and an application to Georgia


Emergency Management Agency- Homeland Security in order to receive the 2013 Emergency


Management Performance Grant Response and Recovery Award, and authorization for County


Administrator Steve Rapson to sign as the authorized agent.


16. Approval of the July 9, 2013 City of Fayetteville / Fayette County Joint Meeting Minutes and the July 9,


2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.







Agenda
July 25, 2013
Page Number 3


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's request to annex 21 properties totaling about 1,200 acres located in the area of Veterans 


Parkway, Sandy Creek Road, SR 54 West, Tyrone Road, South Sandy Creek Road and Hood Road, to rezone said properties from A-R, 


R-70 and G-B (County Zoning) to R-70 and PCD (City zoning), and to enter into an Annexation Consent Agreement between all parties.


The City of Fayetteville, in accordance to applicable Georgia laws, notified Fayette County of its intention to annex 21 properties totaling 


approximately 1,200 acres located in the area of Veterans Parkway, Sandy Creek Road, State Route 54 West, Tyrone Road, South 


Sandy Creek Road, and Hood Road, and to rezone said properties from A-R, R-70, and G-B (County zoning) to R-70 and PCD (City 


zoning. 


 


During the July 9, 2013 Joint Fayette County / City of Fayetteville Meeting, the annexation request (identified as "Attachment A" of the 


backup and the associated Annexation Consent Agreement (identified as "Attachment C" of the backup) were discussed.  Fayetteville 


Director of Community Services Brian Wismer and Fayette County Community Development Director Pete Frisina briefed the elected 


members of the Fayetteville City Council and the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on the Annexation Consent Agreement, and 


their presentation notes are identified as "Attachment B" of the backup.


Approval of the City of Fayetteville's request to annex 21 properties totaling about 1,200 acres located in the area of Veterans Parkway, 


Sandy Creek Road, SR 54 West, Tyrone Road, South Sandy Creek Road and Hood Road, to rezone said properties from A-R, R-70 and 


G-B (County Zoning) to R-70 and PCD (City zoning), and to enter into an Annexation Consent Agreement between all parties.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The Annexation Consent Agreement and the work associated between the respective staffs from the City of Fayetteville and Fayette 


County is an example of intergovernmental cooperation between both jurisdictions for the betterment of all the citizens of Fayette County.


ConsentThursday, July 25, 2013







fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment A



































































































Intergovernmental Agreement


(IGA)


• To ensure a smooth transition 


between governments


• To develop a unified strategy that 


addresses the concerns of both City 


and County



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment B







Intergovernmental Agreement


(IGA)


• To minimize impact on Pinewood 


project currently under construction


• County will continue Building Permits & 


Inspections


• City permits Sewer, Landscaping, Parking 


& Signage


• Sets precedent for development of 


Permitting & Inspection Services 


agreement between City/County.







Intergovernmental Agreement


(IGA)


• Multi-Use Path network


• Integrated throughout


• Connect to existing framework


• Required in development overlay


• Path tunnel construction guidelines







Intergovernmental Agreement


(IGA)


• Allocation of Public Services


• Fire


• Sets compensation for primary 


response until Station 93 is operational


• Police


• County Sheriff to maintain service 


delivery as City incrementally increases 


Police staff for the area


• EMS and 911 remain unchanged







Intergovernmental Agreement


(IGA)


• Roads


• City to maintain Veterans Pkwy, from SR54 


to Sandy Creek Road; also Sandy Creek 


Road along Pinewood frontage.


• County to provide funds for possible road 


expansion via future SPLOST.


• City to uphold existing curb cut limits in 


place by the County.  Interparcel access via 


slip roads for new development.



















































 


 
~#4832-8566-1203 v.1~ 


ANNEXATION CONSENT AGREEMENT 


 


 This Intergovernmental Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) is entered into this the 


_____ day of __________, 2013 by and among FAYETTE COUNTY, a political subdivision of 


the State of Georgia (hereinafter “County”); the CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, a municipal 


corporation chartered by the State of Georgia (hereinafter “City”) and 


____________________________________________ a Georgia corporation (hereinafter 


“Property Owner”). 


 


WITNESSETH: 
 


 WHEREAS, Property Owners desire to annex into the corporate limits of City multiple 


tracts of land totaling approximately 1200 acres, more particularly described on Exhibit “A”; and  


 


 WHEREAS, pursuant to the O.C.G.A. § 36-36-6 and O.C.G.A. § 36-36-111, the City 


notified the County of its intent to annex the tracts and further notifying the County of the 


intended land use classification; and  


 


 WHEREAS, the County raises no objections to said annexation.  


 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein 


and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereunto agree as follows: 


 


1. Recitals. The Recitals contained in this Agreement are specifically incorporated 


herein and made a part hereof. 


 


2. Annexation. The City of Fayetteville shall annex within its corporate borders the 


properties shown on Exhibit “A” (the Annexed Property), such parcels containing approximately 


1200 acres of land.  


 


3. Zoning of the Annexed Area. The City shall zone parcels 07-06-006, 07-06-063, 


07-05-007, 07-05-019, 05-28-011, 05-28-030, and 05-28-040. Planned Community District 


(PCD) as described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein. The remaining 


portion of the Annexed Property shall be zoned R-70 Residential as described in Exhibit “C” 


attached hereto and incorporated herein. 


 


4.   Consent of County.  The County hereby consents to the annexation proposed 


hereby and waives all objections to the proposed annexation, provided, the Annexed Property is 


zoned by the City as described in Paragraph 3 above. 


 


 


 


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment C







 


 
~#4832-8566-1203 v.1~ 


5. Representations and Warranties. 
 


a. The undersigned Mayor of the City of Fayetteville hereby represents and warrants 


that this agreement has been fully reviewed by the City Council and that the City 


Council has approved this Agreement in a meeting open to the public and has 


authorized the Mayor to execute the same. 


 


b. The undersigned Chairman of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


hereby represents and warrants that this agreement has been fully reviewed by the 


Board of Commissioners and that the Board of Commissioners has approved this 


Agreement in a meeting open to the public and has authorized the Chairman to 


execute the same. 


 


c. For the construction underway in the County prior to the annexation, the City 


authorizes the County to issue permits and collect associated permit fees, review, 


inspect, and enforce compliance with all applicable Fayette County building 


codes, including the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  The City shall retain 


the right to review and comment to County staff regarding any concerns 


pertaining to said site/construction plans.  Upon issuance by the County of a CO, 


the City will accept the development as being compliant with City codes and 


ordinances.  All future development projects on the Annexed Property after 


annexation shall be subject to the City of Fayetteville’s standard planning and 


zoning review and development approval procedures.  


 


For land disturbance shown on the construction plan known as “Pinewood Atlanta 


Phase 1A”approved on 6/13/13 by Stormwater Management, the City authorizes 


the County to issue permits and collected associated fees, review, inspect, and 


enforce compliance with all applicable Fayette County stormwater, and erosion, 


sediment, and pollution control codes.  


 


d. Notwithstanding any of the items declared in paragraph 5c above, for the 


site/construction plan known as “Pinewood Atlanta Phase 1A”, the City shall 


issue permits and collect associated permit fees, review, inspect, and enforce 


compliance with sanitary sewer, landscaping, minimum parking dimensions, and 


signage standards according to City of Fayetteville codes and ordinances. 


 


e. For future construction, the City may contract with the County to provide building 


permitting and inspection services for compliance with all applicable City 


building codes. The scope of these services will be covered in a separate 


agreement for Permitting and Inspection Services.  


 


f. Multi-Use Paths – The City and County shall continue to work together, along  


with the property owners, to develop a comprehensive network of multi-use paths 







 


 
~#4832-8566-1203 v.1~ 


that provide safe and efficient access for pedestrians, bicycles and golf carts 


across the subject properties and into other areas of the City and County.   


 


In addition, Fayette County shall be responsible for design, permitting and 


construction of a path over Sandy Creek, of which Pinewood Atlanta has allowed 


the Fayette County government full access to the property to facilitate the multi-


use path continuing across the wetlands, by bridge or build-out of existing 


embankment, to the southeastern corner of the subject property. The creek 


crossing will ultimately connect to pathways along Veterans Parkway to be 


constructed by Owners/Developers of Pinewood Atlanta.   


 


Multi-Use Path Tunnel - The City and County acknowledge that a multi-use path 


tunnel shall be constructed beneath either Sandy Creek Road or Veteran’s 


Parkway connecting to the Pinewood site.  The location of the tunnel shall be 


decided jointly between the City and County.  The City and County also 


acknowledge that Pinewood Atlanta shall make a financial contribution in the 


amount of $60,000 and required easements towards the tunnel project with 


specific details addressed in the conditions of annexation. The City will be 


responsible for the coordinating the construction of the tunnel with the County 


providing earthwork to reduce costs. The City will include the multi-use path 


tunnel as an eligible project in the 2013 Core Infrastructure Special Purpose Local 


Option Sales Tax (SPLOST), and if the referendum is approved by the voters, the 


City shall be responsible for the balance of the costs of the project less the 


Pinewood Atlanta contribution and earthwork assistance from the County. Should 


the SPLOST referendum not be approved by the voters, the County will be 


responsible for the total construction costs less the Pinewood Atlanta contribution.  


At-grade path crossings of Veteran’s Parkway and Sandy Creek Road shall be 


avoided for safety and efficiency reasons, and without a tunnel or bridge access, 


made only at intersections with traffic controlled devices (e.g. stop signs or traffic 


signals, etc.) Any exceptions shall be approved by both City and County 


engineering departments.   


 


 


g. The City of Fayetteville has plans to construct a new Fire Station (Station 93) to 


service the existing city limits and newly annexed properties in the West 


Fayetteville area as outlined in exhibit “A.”   Design is programmed in the City’s 


FY 2015 budget with construction in FY 2016 budget.  Fayette County Station 11 


is currently providing primary emergency fire response to the area of the proposed 


annexation with secondary response from City of Fayetteville Fire Station 91.  


Fayette County agrees to continue with this service delivery arrangement without 


any charge for services through June 30, 2015.  After this date, the City agrees to 


compensate the County for primary emergency fire response protection services 


until Station 93 is operational.   


 







 


 
~#4832-8566-1203 v.1~ 


Said compensation shall be at fifty (50%) of the total assessed value of real 


property in the annexed area as of June 30, 2015 and any subsequent years 


multiplied by the Fayette County Fire Millage rate effective as of June 30, 2015 


and for any subsequent years.  The City shall provide documentation to the 


County by January 15
th


 of each year, starting in 2016, and the City shall submit 


payment to the County by January 31
st
 of each year, starting in 2016.  Any 


disputes will be settled jointly between the Fayetteville City Manager and Fayette 


County Administrator.  This service delivery agreement is strictly limited to the 


properties outlined in exhibit “A” until Station 93 assumes primary response to 


the area.  Upon assumption of primary response by Station 93, the service 


delivery agreements in force at that time will then apply. 


 


  


h. The City of Fayetteville Police Department shall utilize a phased-in approach to 


address the staffing and capital needs associated with law enforcement service 


delivery to the proposed West Fayetteville Area.  The Fayette County Sheriff’s 


Office shall continue to operate under the current Mutual Aid Agreement to 


provide initial service to the new West Fayetteville Area until Fayetteville Police 


resources are fully developed.   


 


i. Emergency 9-1-1 services are provided by Fayette County through a consolidated 


9-1-1 system.  City of Fayetteville property owners contribute to this system 


through a special tax district.  This system will service the proposed annexation 


area in the same manner. 


 


j. Emergency Medical Services, advanced life support and transport services are 


provided by Fayette County.  City of Fayetteville property owners contribute to 


this system as part of the EMS tax district.  This system will service the proposed 


annexation area in the same manner. 


 


k. 1. The City of Fayetteville will assume full maintenance responsibility for all 


of Veterans Parkway between SR 54 and Sandy Creek Road, a distance of 


approximately 1.86 miles.   


2. The City of Fayetteville will assume full maintenance responsibility for 


the portion of Sandy Creek Road between its southern termini with Veterans 


Parkway and western-most edge of the proposed City limits; a distance of 


approximately 0.55 miles.   


3. The City of Fayetteville should assume full ownership and maintenance 


responsibility for the intersection of Sandy Creek Road and Veterans Parkway.   


4. Road capacity increases may be needed in the future for the existing 2-


lane section of Veterans Parkway and Sandy Creek Road within the areas being 


considered for annexation. County would agree to include this project in a future 


SPLOST at City’s request. 


 







 


 
~#4832-8566-1203 v.1~ 


l. The City agrees to uphold the following curb cut limits along Veterans Parkway 


and Sandy Creek Road. 


 


For parcels annexed into the City and having frontage on Veterans Parkway 


between SR 54 and South Sandy Creek Road: 


 No private driveways onto Veterans Parkway; and 


 No additional future road intersections beyond the two intersections 


already built into the roadway.  Frontage roads, provided by property 


owners/developers, shall be used to gain access to the existing curb cuts.   


For parcels having frontage on Sandy Creek Road and/or Veterans Parkway 


(north of South Sandy Creek Road intersection): 


 One curb cut, as already shown on site plan, from the Rivers Rock LLC 


properties (Parcels 07-06-006 and 07-05-007) to Veterans Parkway; 


 One future curb cut from Parcel 05-26-011 to Veterans Parkway;  


 One future curb cut from Parcel 07-06-006 (44-acre portion) to Sandy 


Creek Road; and 


 Additional driveways and/or road intersections from other parcels may be 


permitted in accordance with existing City and County regulations. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


6. Miscellaneous.  This agreement is entered into pursuant to the authority granted in 


Article 9, § 3, ¶ 1 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia.  This agreement shall be construed 


in all respects in accordance with Georgia law.  This agreement may not be modified or amended 


except in writing signed by all the parties. 


 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have set there hand and seal the date first written 


above. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


[Signature appear on the next page] 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 
~#4832-8566-1203 v.1~ 


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 


 


 


By:____________________________________ 


     Gregory C. Clifton 


     Mayor 


 


 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


By:____________________________________ 


     Steve Brown 


     Chairman 


 


 







 


 
~#4832-8566-1203 v.1~ 


EXHIBIT A 


 


 







 


 
~#4832-8566-1203 v.1~ 


 


EXHIBIT B 


 







 


 
~#4832-8566-1203 v.1~ 


EXHIBIT C 


 





		Administration- Annexation Co...ement Agenda Request File

		Administration- Annexation Consent Agreement Backup

		Administration- Annexation Consent Agreement Backup

		BOC memo F-ville Annex Pinewood & Surrounding Properties

		Administration- Annexation Consent Agreement Backup

		Administration- Intergovernmental Agreement Backup 1

		Administration- Intergovernmental Agreement Backup 2

		Administration- Intergovernmental Agreement Backup 3





		Fayette - IGA 7-11-13 with Exhibits












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Consideration of staff's recommendation to enter into a Permitting and Inspection Services Agreement between the City of Fayetteville 


and Fayette County, for the purpose of the County providing building inspection services to the City, and for other purposes.


The City of Fayetteville is in need of a party to perform certain Permitting, Inspections and Building Plan Review for the City. Fayette 


County is qualified to perform Permitting, Inspections and Plan Review.  Therefore, the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County desire to 


enter into an agreement authorizing the County to perform certain Permitting, Inspections and Plan Reviews for the City. 


 


During the July 9, 2013 Joint Meeting between the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County, Fayetteville Director of Community Services 


Brian Wismer and Fayette County's Community Development Director Pete Frisina spoke about this proposed Permitting and Inspection.  


Their presentation notes are attached and identified as "Attachment A" of the backup. 


 


The proposed Permitting and Inspection Services Agreement,  identified as "Attachment B" of the backup, establishes the terms of the 


agreement for the County to perform services for the city.   


 


The agreement is for a period of twelve months, and shall be automatically renewed for twelve month periods unless written notice is 


provided by one party to the other not less than 90 days prior to the anniversary date.


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a Permitting and Inspection Services Agreement between the City of Fayetteville and 


Fayette County, for the purpose of the County providing building inspection services to the City, and for other purposes.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This Permitting and Inspection Agreement and the work associated between Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville in drafting the 


agreement stand as another example of intergovernmental cooperation between both jurisdictions for the betterment of all the citizens in 


Fayette County.


ConsentThursday, July 25, 2013







Permitting & Inspection Services 


Agreement


• Mutually Beneficial


• City/County revenue sharing of permit and 


inspection fees


• City utilizes County experience and 


resources to fill need for inspection services



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment A







Permitting & Inspection Services 


Agreement


• Key Points


• One-year renewable terms, as needed


• Service area map identifies current and 


proposed Pinewood studio and educational 


components


• County provides permitting/inspections for: 


• Building


• Plumbing


• Mechanical/Electrical


• Fire/ADA







Permitting & Inspection Services 


Agreement


• Key Points (cont’d)


• City maintains permitting/inspections for: 


• Architectural Elevations


• Landscaping


• Parking


• Signage







Permitting & Inspection Services 


Agreement


• Key Points (cont’d)


• 75/25 Revenue share (County 75%, City 25%) 


for all work performed by the County


• Applies to all plans submitted after the 


effective annexation date.







 Page 1 
 


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 


 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


PERMITTING AND INSPECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 2013 by 


and between the CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, a municipality duly incorporated in the State of 


Georgia, acting by and through its duly elected Mayor and Council, hereinafter referred to as the 


"City", and FAYETTE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, acting by and 


through its duly elected Board of Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the "County", for the 


purpose of the County providing building inspection services to the City, and for other purposes. 


W I T N E S S E T H: 


 WHEREAS, the City is in need of a party to perform certain Permitting, Inspections and 


Building Plan Review for the City for the area specified in Exhibit “A”.  Development plans may 


be added to this agreement at any time by joint and mutual agreement of the City of Fayetteville 


- City Manager and Fayette County - County Administrator (County); and 


 WHEREAS, the County is qualified to perform Permitting, Inspections and Plan 


Review; and 


 WHEREAS, the City and the County desire by this writing to set forth the terms of their 


agreement for the County to perform certain Permitting, Inspections and Plan Reviews for the 


City; 


 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual premises contained herein, 


and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 


acknowledged by both parties, both parties agree as follows: 


Section 1. Legal Authority.  



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment B







 Page 2 
 


1.1 This Agreement shall constitute a binding, legal contract between the parties hereto, 


in accordance with the authority granted by Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I of the 1983 


Constitution of the State of Georgia.  Each of the parties herein covenants that is has the requisite 


legal authority to provide the services, perform the functions, and otherwise do all things 


necessary, convenient, and expedient to carry out the obligations and responsibilities herein set 


forth, either expressly or by reasonable implication. 


 


Section 2.  Building Plan Review. 


 2.1 The County agrees to review all supporting construction documents submitted for 


Building Permits to ensure compliance with all local code and ordinance requirements.  This 


agreement is limited to any permits/plans required until a certificate of occupancy is issued.   


The County will coordinate with City officials to allow City participation in the review process. 


The City agrees to submit complete copies of all supporting construction documents 


accompanying applications for Building Permits to the County.  Said copies shall become the 


property of the County and returned to the City upon termination of this agreement.  Drawings 


that are related to site work will not be required to be reviewed under this agreement.  The 


County agrees to submit a written record of the Plan Review process to the builder with a list of 


required corrections to be made to complete the Plan Review.   


Section 3.  Inspections. 


 3.1 The County shall perform on-site inspections of building construction based on the 


inspection schedule supplied to each contractor at the time of permit issuance to ensure 


compliance with the City's municipal code and its ordinances.  This agreement does not apply to 


any inspections required after the certificate of occupancy is issued The County will coordinate 







 Page 3 
 


with City officials to allow City participation in the inspection process.  The County shall 


perform all necessary inspections within its scope consistent with code and ordinance 


requirements.  The inspection schedule shall include County notification to the City’s Planning 


and Zoning department upon any Permittee’s request for a final inspection, and no Certificate of 


Occupancy, or Certificate of Completion may be issued until released by that department.   


 


 3.2  The County shall perform periodic on-site inspections of construction pursuant to 


permits for plumbing, mechanical and electrical work.   


 3.3  A fee will be paid to the City for each permit issued (Building, Plumbing, 


Mechanical, Electrical) based upon the schedule attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "C".  Any 


re-inspection deemed necessary by the County as a result of any one of the standard inspections 


shall not be part of the initial permit fee.  The Permittee shall be assessed an additional amount 


by the County for each necessary re-inspection.  All inspections shall be made within 48 hours 


after request. 


  


Section 4.  Payment of Fees.   


4.1 The County shall pay the City monthly for fees collected as part of this services 


agreement based on the outlined schedules attached to this Agreement as Exhibit “B” and “C”.  


Payment shall be submitted to the City within 15 days after the end of each month for all fees 


collected as part of this agreement as of the end of the prior month.   


 


Section 5.  City Code and Ordinances.   







 Page 4 
 


5.1 The City shall provide the County with a complete set of the current City Code and 


accompanying ordinances.  Upon adoption of any ordinance or resolution amending the existing 


Code and ordinances, the City shall immediately provide a copy of each new ordinance, 


resolution, or page(s) of the City Code to the County. 


 


 


 


Section 6.  Indemnification.   


6.1 To the extent allowed by law, the County shall indemnify the City against any losses, 


damages, judgments, interest, settlements, fines, court costs and other reasonable costs and 


expenses, including attorney fees, and any other liabilities incurred by, imposed upon, or 


suffered by the City in connection with or resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding 


arising out of or in conjunction with the performance by the County of its duties and 


responsibilities under this Agreement. 


 


Section 7.  Other expenses.   


7.1 No other expenses or allowances are anticipated or allowed except those covered in 


this Agreement. 


 


Section 8.  Term of Contract. 


 8.1 This contract shall extend for a period of twelve (12) months, and shall be renewed 


automatically for twelve (12) month periods unless written notice to cancel is provided by one 


party to the other not less than 90 days prior to the anniversary date.  All permitted work not 







 Page 5 
 


completed by the County by the contract termination date will be completed by the County 


through the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or Certificate of Completion. 


Section 9.  Miscellaneous. 


 9.1 Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 


 9.2 This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement of the parties.  No 


representations not contained herein have been relied upon or shall be binding upon either of the 


parties hereto.  This Agreement may not be modified except by written agreement signed by both 


parties. 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the County have caused this Agreement to be 


executed in their respective corporate names and their respective corporate seals to be hereunto 


affixed and attested by their duly authorized officers, all as of the date first above written. 


       
FAYETTE COUNTY 


 
 
 
        By:______________________________ 
       STEVE BROWN, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
____________, County Clerk 
 
   
      THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 
 
 
        By:______________________________ 
       GREG CLIFTON, Mayor 
ATTEST:      
 
________________________ 
_____________, City Clerk 







 Page 6 
 


EXHIBIT “A” 







 Page 7 
 


  
 
 


Exhibit "B" 
 


Fees for Building Plan Review 
 
 
1.  For all work within its scope, the County shall collect and retain Building Plan Review fees 
from the Permittee assessed at the current approved County fee schedule for each project 
requiring Building Plan Review. 
 
2.  Attendance at more than four (4) meetings per calendar month shall be billed at the rate of 
$75.00 per meeting 







 Page 8 
 


Exhibit "C" 
 


Fees for Permits and Inspections 
 
1.  The County shall collect all applicable Permit fees from the Permittee assessed at the current 
approved County fee schedule for each project requiring Permitting.   
 
2.  The County shall pay the City an amount equal to twenty-five 25%  of the permit fee 
collected for each Residential and Non-Residential project requiring Permitting.  
 
3.  The County shall retain all re-inspection fees for re-inspections performed as part of a given 
project. 
 
4.  The City shall collect all appropriate Impact fees from the Permittee prior to the County’s 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or Certificate of Completion..  
 
5.  The City shall provide the County with a Zoning / Authorization for Permitting Approval 
Letter to be submitted by Permittee with Permit Application to the County. 
 
6.  Permitting and Inspection fees collected for projects submitted to the City after the effective 
annexation date, and located within the area defined in Exhibit “A”- will become part of this 
agreement and subject to payment to the City. 
 
7.  Attendance at more than four (4) meetings per calendar month shall be billed at the rate of 
$75.00 per meeting.  
 





		Administration- Permits and I...ement Agenda Request File

		Administration- Permits and Inspection Backup

		Administration- Permits and Inspection Agreement Backup 1

		Administration- Permits and Inspection Agreement Backup 2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Code Enforcement & Licensing Kathy Hobbs


Consideration of staff's request to approve a new beer and wine package sales license for Amir Shahzad operating as BP Kenwood at 


1866 Ga Hwy. 85 N., Fayetteville, Georgia 30214.


A new license package was submitted May 22, 2013.  A copy of Mr. Shahzad's application fee and payment, a checklist, and a letter from 


the Interim County Attorney's office indicating this request is satisfactory to legal form with a few minor exceptions.   


 


The Interim County Attorney's Office does not believe the minor exceptions warrant a delay in the process of having the application 


approved.  Moreover, the exceptions have been corrected. 


 


This Public Hearing was advertised in the July 3rd edition of the Fayette Daily News.  County Ordinance requires this public hearing to be 


advertised in two consecutive runs of the County's legal organ.  A second, consecutive advertisement for this request did not occur due 


to an error at the paper. 


 


Upon advise from legal staff, this public hearing will be run on the weekend edition of the Fayette Daily News in the classified section.  It 


will also run in the July 24 edition of the legal organ under the Legal section.  Legal has advised that this method is acceptable due to 


extenuating circumstances.


Consideration of staff's request to approve a new beer and wine package sales license for Amir Shahzad operating as BP Kenwood at 


1866 Ga Hwy. 85 N., Fayetteville, Georgia 30214.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, July 25, 2013

















		Code Enforcement- Shahzad Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Shahzad Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown 


Recognition by Mr. Christopher Dunn, contributing writer of Fayette Game Day Youth Sports Magazine, of Mr. Brad Hort and Ms. Gabby 


Seiler as Fayette County's Athletes of the Year.


Male and Female Fayette Game Day County Athletes of the Year: 


 


Brad Hort:  McIntosh High School 


  Accomplishments:  Cross Country Region Champion (individual); Cross Country State Champion (individual); Cross County State    


Champion (team); 1,600 meter run runner-up at state track and field meet; Boys track and field state champion (team); Qualified for 


nationals in the 5,000 meters (Foot Locker Nationals); Signed with University of Georgia for Cross Country and Track. 


 


Gabby Seiler- McIntosh High School 


  Soccer Accomplishments:  Two-time State Champion in soccer; Reached Final Four all four years; Co-Player of the Year for Fayette 


County.  Basketball Accomplishments:  All-County Player of the Year two consecutive years; Reached state playoffs all four seasons; 


McIntosh's all-time leading scorer with 2,003 points (passing Jeff Sheppard who was the 1998 NCAA tournament MVP while at 


Kentucky.)


Recognition by Mr. Christopher Dunn, contributing writer of Fayette Game Day Youth Sports Magazine, of Mr. Brad Hort and Ms. Gabby 


Seiler as Fayette County's Athletes of the Year.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, July 25, 2013













		Commissioners- Athletes Recognition Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Athletes Recognition Backup

		SKMBT_C25213071909010

		Commissioners- Athletes Recognition Backup

		Commissioners- Athletes Recognition Backup

		SKMBT_C25213071908530














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Elections Thomas L. Sawyer


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville allowing the Fayette County Board 


of Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in Fayetteville in 2013, and authorization for the Chairman to sign 


said Intergovernmental Agreement.


The City of Fayetteville has signed an Intergovernmental Agreement for Conduction Municipal Elections, and in so doing has requested 


that Fayette County, through the Fayette County Board of Elections, conduct the city's November 5, 2013 municipal general election and 


other elections that may be necessary in 2013.   


 


The City will be using two precincts which lie within the city limits of Fayetteville: Fayette County Library (40B) and the LaFayette 


Educational Center (40A). 


 


There will be no cost to the County as the city has agreed to be responsible for all out-of-pocket expenses relevant to this request.


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville allowing the Fayette County Board 


of Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in Fayetteville in 2013, and authorization for the Chairman to sign 


said Intergovernmental Agreement.


There will be no cost for conducting these elections.  An invoice will be submitted to the City of Fayetteville for incurred expenses, and 


they will be required to remit payment within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


This intergovernmental agreement is an example of the City of Fayetteville City and Fayette County working together to ensure municipal 


elections for the leadership and direction of the city.


ConsentThursday, July 25, 2013







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


July 5, 2013   


 


 


To :  Fayette County Board of  Commissioners  


    Steve Brown,  Chairman  


 


From :  Fayette County Board of Elections/Voter Registration  


    Thomas L. Sawyer, Supervisor  


 


        Subject:   Authorization for the Chairman to execute Agreement with the City of 


Fayetteville for the Fayette County Elections Department to  conduct the city’s 


November 5, 2013 Municipal General Election and other 2013 elections as 


needed.  


 


The City of Fayetteville has signed an INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 


CONDUCTING MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS  asking that the Fayette County board of 


Elections conduct the city’s November 5, 2013 municipal general election and other 


elections as needed in 2013. The city will be using the two precincts which lie within the 


City limits of Fayetteville – Fayette County Library (40B)  and the LaFayette Educational 


Center (40A).  There will be no cost to the County as the  city has agreed to be 


responsible for direct out-of-pocket expenses associated with these election.  


 


This Consent Agenda item is being presented to request authorization for  Chairman 


Steve Brown of the Fayette County  Board of Commissioners to sign the 


intergovernmental agreement with the City of Fayetteville and  Fayette County through 


the Fayette County Board of Elections. The County’s Interim Attorney, Dennis 


Davenport, has been reviewed this form and has given his approval.        


 


Please contact the Elections office if you have questions or need additional information.   


 


Sincerely,  


 


 


Thomas L. Sawyer  


Fayette County Elections/Voter Registration Supervisor  


770.305.5138 





















		Elections- Fayetteville Inter...ement Agenda Request File

		Elections- Fayetteville Intergovernmental Agreement Backup

		Elections- Fayetteville Backup 1

		Elections- Fayetteville Backup 2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Elections Thomas L. Sawyer


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Peachtree City allowing the Fayette County 


Board of Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in Peachtree City in 2013, and authorization for the 


Chairman to sign said Intergovernmental Agreement.


The City of Peachtree City has signed an Intergovernmental Agreement for Conduction Municipal Elections, and in so doing has 


requested that Fayette County, through the Fayette County Board of Elections, conduct the city's November 5, 2013 municipal general 


election and other elections that may be necessary in 2013.   


 


The City will be using twelve precincts which lie within the city limits of Peachtree City.  Those precincts are listed as follows: 


 


11- Shakerag East                                    18- Kedron                              22- Braelinn 


12-  Shakerag West                                  19-  Aberdeen                         31-  Fielding Ridge 


16-  McIntosh                                            20- Windgate                          32- Willowbend 


17- Oak Grove                                          21- Flat Creek                          33- Camp Creek                                    


 


There will be no cost to the County as the city has agreed to be responsible for all out-of-pocket expenses relevant to this request.


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Peachtree City allowing the Fayette County 


Board of Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in Peachtree City in 2013, and authorization for the 


Chairman to sign said Intergovernmental Agreement.


There will be no cost for conducting these elections.  An invoice will be submitted to the City of Peachtree City for incurred expenses, and 


they will be required to remit payment within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


This intergovernmental agreement is an example of the City of Peachtree City and Fayette County working together to ensure municipal 


elections for the leadership and direction of the city.


ConsentThursday, July 25, 2013







 


 


 


 


July 5, 2013  


 


To :  Fayette County Board of  Commissioners  


    Steve Brown,   Chairman  


 


From :  Fayette County Board of Elections/Voter Registration  


    Thomas L. Sawyer, Supervisor  
 


   Subject:  Authorization for the Chairman to execute Agreement with the City of 


Peachtree City for the Fayette County Elections Department to  conduct the 


city’s November 5, 2013 Municipal General Election and other 2013 elections 


as needed.  
 


The City of Peachtree City has signed an INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 


FOR CONDUCTING MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS asking that the Fayette County Board 


of Elections to conduct the city’s November 5, 2013 municipal general election and other 


elections as needed in 2013.  The city will be using the 12 precincts which lie within the 


City limits of Peachtree City:  
 


11 -  Shakerag East    20 -  Windgate  


12 – Shakerag West    21 – Flat Creek   


16 – Mc Intosh   22 – Braelinn  


17  - Oak Grove   31 – Fielding Ridge  


18 – Kedron    32 – Willowbend  


19 – Aberdeen    33 -  Camp Creek  


     


There will be no cost to the County as the  city has agreed to be responsible for all direct 


out-of-pocket expenses associated with these elections.  


 


This Consent Agenda item is being presented to request authorization for  Chairman 


Steve Brown of the Fayette County  Board of Commissioners to sign the 


intergovernmental agreement with the City of Peachtree City  and  Fayette County 


through the Fayette County Board of Elections. The County’s  Interim Attorney, Dennis 


Davenport,  has been reviewed this agreement and given his approval. .      


 


Please contact the Elections office if you have questions or need additional information.   


 


Sincerely,  


 


 


Thomas L. Sawyer  


Fayette County Elections/Voter Registration Supervisor  


770.305.5138 





















		Elections- Peachtree City Int...ement Agenda Request File

		Elections- Peachtree City Intergovernmental Agreement Backup

		Elections- Peachtree City Backup 1

		Elections- Peachtree City Backup 2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Elections Thomas L. Sawyer


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Tyrone allowing the Fayette County Board of 


Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in Tyrone in 2013, and authorization for the Chairman to sign said 


Intergovernmental Agreement.


The Town of Tyrone has signed an Intergovernmental Agreement for Conduction Municipal Elections, and in so doing has requested that 


Fayette County, through the Fayette County Board of Elections, conduct the town's November 5, 2013 municipal general election and 


other elections that may be necessary in 2013.   


 


The town will be using one precinct which lies within the town's border:  Tyrone Public Library (Rareover- #9). 


 


There will be no cost to the County as the town has agreed to be responsible for all out-of-pocket expenses relevant to this request.


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Tyrone allowing the Fayette County Board of 


Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in Tyrone in 2013, and authorization for the Chairman to sign said 


Intergovernmental Agreement.


There will be no cost for conducting these elections.  An invoice will be submitted to the Town of Tyrone for incurred expenses, and they 


will be required to remit payment within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


This intergovernmental agreement is an example of the Town of Tyrone and Fayette County working together to ensure municipal 


elections for the leadership and direction of the city.


ConsentThursday, July 25, 2013







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


July 5, 2013  


 


 


To :  Fayette County Board of  Commissioners  


    Steve Brown,  Chairman  


 


From :  Fayette County Board of Elections / Voter Registration  


    Thomas L. Sawyer, Supervisor  


 


     Subject   :   Authorization for the Chairman to execute Agreement with the Town of Tyrone 


for the Fayette County Elections Department to  conduct the town’s November 


5, 2013 Municipal General Election and other 2013 elections as needed.  


 


The Town of Tyrone has signed an INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 


CONDUCTING MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS asking that the Fayette County Board of 


Elections  conduct the town’s November 5, 2013 municipal general elections and other 


elections as needed in 2013.  The town will be using the precinct which lies within the 


Town limits of Tyrone – Tyrone Public Library  (Rareover – # 9).  There will  be no cost 


to the County as the  Town of Tyrone  has agreed to be responsible for all direct out-of-


pocket expenses associated with all these elections.   


  


This Consent Agenda item is being presented to request authorization for  Chairman 


Steve Brown  of the Fayette County  Board of Commissioners to sign the 


intergovernmental agreement with the Town of Tyrone and  Fayette County through the 


Fayette County Board of Elections. The County’s Interim Attorney, Dennis Davenport, 


has reviewed  this agreement and given his approval.       


 


Please contact the Elections office if you have questions or need additional information.   


 


Sincerely,  


 


 


Thomas L. Sawyer  


Fayette County Elections/Voter Registration Supervisor  


770.305.5138 

























		Elections- Tyrone Intergovern...ement Agenda Request File

		Elections- Tyrone Intergovernmental Agreement Backup

		Elections- Tyrone Backup 1

		Elections- Tyrone Backup 2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Elections Thomas L. Sawyer


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Woolsey allowing the Fayette County Board of 


Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in Woolsey in 2013, and authorization for the Chairman to sign said 


Intergovernmental Agreement.


The Town of Wooley has signed an Intergovernmental Agreement for Conduction Municipal Elections, and in so doing has requested that 


Fayette County, through the Fayette County Board of Elections, conduct the town's November 5, 2013 municipal general election and 


other elections that may be necessary in 2013.   


 


The town will be using one precinct which lies within the town's border:  Woolsey Town Hall (Town Elections only) (Woolsey- #15). 


 


There will be no cost to the County as the town has agreed to be responsible for all out-of-pocket expenses relevant to this request.


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Woolsey allowing the Fayette County Board of 


Elections to act as Superintendent of Elections for all elections held in Woolsey in 2013, and authorization for the Chairman to sign said 


Intergovernmental Agreement.


There will be no cost for conducting these elections.  An invoice will be submitted to the Town of Woolsey for incurred expenses, and 


they will be required to remit payment within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


This intergovernmental agreement is an example of the Town of Woolsey and Fayette County working together to ensure municipal 


elections for the leadership and direction of the town.


ConsentThursday, July 25, 2013







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


July 5, 2013   


 


 


To :  Fayette County Board of  Commissioners  


    Steve Brown,  Chairman  


 


From :  Fayette County Board of Elections/Voter Registration  


    Thomas L. Sawyer, Supervisor  


 


   Subject      :  Authorization for the Chairman to execute Agreement with the Town of 


Woolsey for the Fayette County Elections Department to  conduct the town’s 


November 5, 2013 Municipal General Election and other 2013 elections as 


needed.   


 


The Town of Woolsey has signed in INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 


CONDUCTING MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS asking that the Fayette County Board of 


Elections conduct the town’s November 5, 2013 municipal general election and other 


elections as needed in 2013.  The town will be using the precinct which lies within the 


Town limits of Woolsey – Woolsey Town Hall (Town Elections Only)  ( # 15), should an 


election be necessary.  There will be no cost to the County as the town has agreed to be 


responsible for all direct out-of-pocket expenses associated with all these elections.   


 


 This Consent Agenda item is being presented to request authorization for   Chairman 


Steve Brown,  Fayette County  Board of Commissioners to sign the intergovernmental 


agreement with the Town of Woolsey and  Fayette County through the Fayette County 


Board of Elections. The County’s Interim Attorney, Dennis Davenport, has reviewed this 


agreement and has given his approval.      


 


Please contact the Elections office if you have questions or need additional information.   


 


Sincerely,  


 


 


Thomas L. Sawyer  


Fayette County Elections/Voter Registration Supervisor  


770.305.5138 





















		Elections- Woolsey Intergover...ement Agenda Request File

		Elections- Woolsey Intergovernmental Agreement Backup

		Elections- Woolsey Backup 1

		Elections- Woolsey Backup 2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire & Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Approval of staff's request to approve and submit both a pre-application and an application to Georgia Emergency Management Agency- 


Homeland Security in order to receive the 2013 Emergency Management Performance Grant Response and Recovery Award, and 


authorization for County Administrator Steve Rapson to sign as the authorized applicant agent. 


Fayette County has an early warning system that consists of 28 sirens and associated software controller that activates the sirens.  Due 


to technology upgrades, the system has limitations and the main server has been repaired using a motherboard from an older computer 


due to its functional obsolesce; this hardware and software serve as the backbone for the early warning system.   


 


If awarded the 2013 Emergency Management Performance Grant Response and Recovery Award, Fire and Emergency Services plans 


to use the grant funding to enhance and improve its ability to warn the public by replacing failing and antiquated equipment in order to 


prevent a failure of the system and in order to provide reliable early warning to the public.  Details of the project are included in the 


attached memo. 


 


The Georgia Emergency Management Agency (GEMA) requires the county to submit a pre-approval application.  GEMA will select 


projects for full application submissions from the pool of pre-applications that it receives. 


 


The applicant will be required to match the EMPG Funds with a cash or in-kind match.


Approval of staff's request to approve and submit both a pre-application and an application to Georgia Emergency Management Agency- 


Homeland Security in order to receive the 2013 Emergency Management Performance Grant Response and Recovery Award, and 


authorization for County Administrator Steve Rapson to sign as the authorized applicant agent. 


Fayette County will be required to match the EMPG Funds with a cash or in-kind match.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Mr. Rapson has been briefed on the project and the prospective cost. Since this is a pre-application the final decision will be made upon 


approval of the pre-application by the State.  There is funding available for the grant match in the Early Warning Siren Construction- 


Capital Project Fund.


ConsentThursday, July 25, 2013











GEORGIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY-Homeland Security 
2013 Emergency Management Performance Grant (2013 EMPG) 


Response and Recovery Competitive Awards 


Pre-Application 
 
 
 
 


Please review pre-application guidelines and instructions for details on submission requirements 
 
 


This pre-application is for the 2013 EMPG Response and Recovery Award submitted to the Georgia Emergency 
Management Agency-Homeland Security (GEMA/HS).   This pre-application may cover requirements for more than 
one community.   Please complete all sections and provide all information as requested.  Incomplete pre-
applications will be removed from further consideration.  From the pre-application pool GEMA/HS will select 
projects for full application submissions.  Successful applicants will receive notification of acceptance and instruction on 
how to proceed with the full application. The applicant will be required to match the EMPG Funds with a cash or in-kind 
match. If you require assistance with this pre-application, please contact your GEMA/HS Field Coordinator. 


 
Applicant 


Information 
 


Implementing 
Agency 


Fayette County Emergency Management  


DUNS Number 099634883 FEI Number 58-6000826 


Mailing Address 140 Stonewall Ave Suite 214  


City Fayetteville  State Georgia ZIP + 4 30214-1520  
 


 


Application Amounts 
Requested 


 
Total Project Cost EMPG Funds Local Match 


Cash / In-Kind 


$106,595 $25,000 $81,595  
 


 


 


Local Contact 
Information 


 
Authorized Agent Name Phone Email Address 


Steve Rapson   770-305-5400 srapson@fayettecountyga.gov  


 
Project / Application Manager Phone Email Address 


Pete Nelms  770-305-5172  peten@fayettecountyga.gov  



mailto:srapson@fayettecountyga.gov

mailto:peten@fayettecountyga.gov





A. Project Type: 
(CHOOSE ONLY ONE) 


This is not an all-
inclusive listing of 
eligible EMPG projects. 
Please view 
the following link for 
eligible projects; 
https://www.rkb.us/ 


 XXX Public Information Early Warning System  
 
Other EMPG eligible activities:   
(see FEMA’s Responder’s Knowledge Base at  https://www.rkb.us/ for a list of eligible activities) 


 


B. Project Description 
 


Fayette County has an early warning system that consists of 28 sirens and associated software controller that sounds 
the sirens. This system has both tone and voice warning capabilities.  The software and associated equipment that 
activates the system is antiquated and the integrity of the system is being questioned and needs to be updated and 
replaced. Our project is to use this grant funding to enhance and improve our ability to warn the public by replacing 
failing and antiquated equipment to prevent a failure of the system and to provide reliable early warning to the public.       
 
The new equipment in which funding is being requested for is allowable under the approved Responder Knowledge 
Base under the category of Public Information and Early Warning System. This new equipment is as follows: 
 


1. 1 Weather Warn Software Package 
2. 1 Customized ACE/WW Software 
3. 1 ACE 3600 for the Weather Warn Package  
4. 1 Antenna System for ACE units  
5. 18 ACE 3600 W/XTS2500 800 MHZ Analog for Sirens  
6. Installation of Equipment  


 
Our early warning equipment is outdated and on the verge of failure. The approval of this grant will allow us to 
continue to provide early warning to the public in a consistent and reliable manner.  
 


C. Public Awareness Component 


Fayette County Emergency Management has a comprehensive public outreach and awareness component 
regarding early warnings. As part of our Storm Ready community program, Fayette County had to meet a 
requirement of public outreach to the community. A large part of our outreach program centers on early warning. Our 
agency will continue to conduct many outreach programs to civic organizations, homeowner groups, newspapers 
and the general public to ensure that the public is aware and educated on our early warning capabilities.  


 


This new equipment has the capability to increase our ability to warn the public by sending alerts via social media, 
email and text alerts. The implementation of this equipment will substantially increase our ability to warn the public 
on a reliable and consistent manner.  


 


D. Planned Exercise Component 


Fayette County Emergency Management Agency is required to conduct several exercises each year as part of state 
and federal requirements. These exercises include a early warning component and will utilize the equipment 
purchased with this grant. Fayette County always participates in the statewide tornado exercises that is a countywide 
exercise that includes all municipalities in Fayette County. All public and private schools participate as well. The new 
equipment that will be purchased with grant funding will be utilized and will be included in the exercise component 
and will improve upon our early warning capabilities.   


 


E. Project Location (if requesting funds for more than one location please provide location and population 
affected for each request). Attach the following. 


 
The location of this equipment will be located at the Fayette County 911 Center located at 100 Volunteer Way, 
Fayetteville, GA  30214. This equipment will affect the entire population of Fayette County of 106,000 residents in 5 
jurisdictions covering an area of 199 square miles.   
 


F. Implementation Schedule 


The implementation schedule is as follows: 


Purchase equipment   45 days 


Install equipment   90 days from date of delivery  



https://www.rkb.us/

https://www.rkb.us/





 


 


 


G. Certification by Authorized Applicant Agent 
An individual authorized to sign financial and legal documents on behalf on the local government (e.g., the Chairperson, 
Board of County Commissioners or the County Manager, etc.). 


   


 
First Name:   Steve   


Last Name:      Rapson  


Title:                County Manager  


Telephone#:    770-305-5400  


Fax #:     770-305-5210 


Street Address:  140 Stonewall Ave W Suite 100 


City:   Fayetteville  


State:    Georgia  


Zip Code:  30214 


E-mail Address:    Srapson@fayettecountyga.gov  
 


 


 


 


Certify that if funded the applicant community will comply with all requirements of the Emergency 
Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Program. 


 
 
 
 


 
 


 
       ________________________   _________________________   
       Signature      Date 
   



mailto:Srapson@fayettecountyga.gov





 
 


 


H. Project Estimate Budget Worksheets 
        List all anticipated project costs. Consider the potential future date of construction when compiling the cost estimate. 


 


 
 
 


PROJECT ESTIMATE BUDGET WORKSHEET 
EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION COST 


 
 
 


Item Quantity Unit Cost Cost Estimate Funding 
Source Weather Warn Software Package  1 $8800 $8800  


Customized ACE/WW Software 1 $4000 $4000  


ACE 3600 for Weather Warn Software  1 $3755 $3755  


Antenna System 1 $1800 $1800  


ACE 3600 W/XTS2500 800 MHZ Analog for Siren 18 $3755 $67,590  


Installation   $20,650 $20,650  


     


     


     


     


Total Estimated Project Cost   $106,595  







 
 


 


PROJECT ESTIMATE BUDGET WORKSHEET 
IN-KIND CONTRIBUTION 


 


 
 


 
Item 


 
Quantity 


 
Unit Cost 


 
Cost Estimate 


 
Sour
ce Personnel     


Maintenance     


Supplies     


Travel     


Other      Cash   $81,595  County Funds Cash 


Other     


Other     


Other     


Other     


 
TOTAL In-Kind Contribution 


  
$81,595 


  







I. Calculation of EMPG – Local Project Cost Share 


 
 


Tier One The State – Local Project Cost Share shall be 85% state and 15% local up to a 
maximum state EMPG award of $42,500. 


 


Tier Two The State – Local Project Cost Share shall be 75% state and 25% local up to a 
maximum state EMPG award of $37,500. 


 


Tier Three The State – Local Project Cost Share shall be 50% state and 50% local up to a 
maximum state EMPG award of $25,000. 


 


Tier Four The State – Local Project Cost Share shall be 50% state and 50% local up to a 
maximum state EMPG award of $25,000. 


 


 
Examples of the calculation of the EMPG – Local Project Cost Share 


 


 


Total Project 
Costs 


 


   $40,000       $50,000      $60,000 
 


Tier One 
85% - 15% 


State -  $34,000 
Local -  $  6,000 


State - $42,500 
Local -  $ 7,500 


State - $42,500 
Local -  $ 7,500 


Tier Two 
75% - 25% 


State - $30,000 
Local -  $10,000 


State - $37,500 
Local -  $12,500 


State - $37,500 
Local -  $22,500 


Tier Three 
50% - 50% 


State - $20,000 
Local -  $20,000 


State - $25,000 
Local -  $25,000 


State - $25,000 
Local -  $25,000 


Tier Four 
50% - 50% 


State - $20,000 
Local -  $20,000 


State - $25,000 
Local -  $25,000 


State - $25,000 
Local -  $25,000 


 


 
CALCULATION OF EMPG AWARD 
1. Enter the total Estimated Project Cost          $106,595 
2. Determine the jurisdictions Job Tax Tier Ranking 


and enter the percentage (refer to support 
documents) 


 


Tier 1 - .85 Tier 2 - .75 Tier 3 - .50 Tier 4 - .50                                         x 
 


3. Multiply line 1 by the Tier percentage and enter the amount 
**If the product is larger than the maximum award for your 
Tier; enter the maximum award amount for your Tier                          $25,000 Federal EMPG Award 


CALCULATION OF LOCAL SHARE 
4.  Enter the total Estimated Project Cost            $106,595  


(from line 1) 
5. Determine the jurisdictions Job Tax Tier Ranking   


and enter the percentage (refer to support documents)                 Max Award $25,000  
 


Tier 1 - .15 Tier 2 - .25 Tier 3 - .50 Tier 4 - .50 
 
6. Multiply line 4 by the Tier percentage and enter the amount           $81,595 Local non-federal Share 


 


Upon completion of initial GEMA/HS Staff review of the R&R Award Application, the GEMA/HS Staff shall 
work with the applicant to determine if any local in-kind contributions can be identified for the project which 
could be used in lieu of local cash match. 





		Fire and EMS- EMPG Grant Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- EMPG Grant Backup

		1

		2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina or Dennis Dutton


Consideration of Ordinance 2013-05, consisting of either Option 1 or Option 2, adopting proposed amendments to the Fayette County 


Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III, Definitions and Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Business District 


regarding building height.   


As discussed during the rezoning for the Pinewood Studio, the building height of the General-Business zoning district would need to be 


amended to accommodate the height of the sound stages.  The BOC instructed staff to review the ordinance and propose amendments.  


 


The amendments would only allow a soundstage to be 65 feet in height.  The setbacks and required acreage would increase 


incrementally for every foot of building height over 40 feet.  Staff and Planning Commission also worked with the North Fayette 


Community Organization as another studio is zoned G-B and planned on SR 138. 


 


The Planning Commission voted 4-1 to approve the amendments with Option 1.  The Planning Commission chose Option 1 since it does 


not increase height too much on SR 138 and it gives Mr. Alvin Williams the 45 feet he originally wanted when the G-B Zoning District was 


being created.   Staff recommends Option 2 since it gives Mr. Williams the 50 feet he asked for in the workshops to keep him competitive 


with Pinewood and building height choices for other studios that may come into the County in the future.    


 


Differences between Options 1 and 2 can be viewed on page six of the accompanying backup material.


Approval of Ordinance 2013-05, either Option 1 or Option 2, adopting proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, 


Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III, Definitions and Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Business District regarding building height.   


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Note:  Variances between Option #1 and Option #2 relate to height (5 feet) and acreage requirements- both reflected in the chart on page 


6 of this request.


Public HearingThursday, July 25, 2013







Date:


To:


From:


Subject:


July 16,2013


Board of Commissioners


Pete Frisina


Zoning Ordinance Amendments Regarding Building Height in the General


Business Zoning District for Movie Studio Soundstages


On June 13, 2013 , staff discussed the proposed Zoning Ordinance amendments regarding


building height in the General-Business (G-B) zoning district with Board of Commissioners
(BOC) and at that meeting the BOC consented to the amendments being considered in a Public


Hearing (sees attached minutes) . This issue initially arose during the rezoning of the property for


the Pinewood Studio.


Staff prepared proposed amendments and the Planning Commission met four (4) times to discuss


the amendments and also participating in these discussions were citizens in the North Fayette


Community Organization and Alvin Williams, who plans to build a movie studio on a property


zoned G-B located on SR 138 (see attached minutes). The amendments regarding building height


in G-B require that the setbacks and acreage be incrementally increased for a soundstage that is


greater than 40 feet in height.


Two (2) Options were developed for the required acreage. Option I starts at 45 feet of height with
a minimum acreage of 10 to 25 acres, 50 feet of height with a minimum acreage of25 to 50 acres, 55 feet
of height with a minimum acreage of 50 to 75 acres, 60 feet of height with a minimum acreage of 75 to
100 acres, and 65 feet of height with more than 100 acres. Option 2 starts at 50 feet of height with a
minimum acreage of 20 to 50 acres, 55 feet of height with a minimum acreage of 50 to 75 acres, 60 feet
of height with a minimum acreage of 75 to 100 acres, and 65 feet of height with more than 100 acres.
The Planning Commission recommends Option 1 because it doesn't increase the height too much on SR
138 and it gives Alvin Williams the 45 feet he originally wanted when the G-B zoning district was being
created. Staff recommends Option 2 because it gives Alvin Williams (the first G-B rezoning) the 50 feet
he asked for in the workshops to keep him competitive with Pinewood and building height choices for
other studios that may come into the County in the future.


The Planning Commission voted 4-1 to recommend approval of the attached amendments with


Option 1 as presented on July 2, 2013 (see attached minutes) . Staff recommends approval of the


amendments with Option 2.







Pete Frisina


From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:


Pete,


Aisha Abdu r-Rahman <alioraisha@bellsouth.net>
Tuesday, July 02, 2013 6:57 AM
Pete Frisina
Zoning change


I was not able to attend the final committee meeting on your proposed changes to the recently enacted zoning
ordinance concerning the "studio" (or whatever it is that Mr Williams truly intends to build up here) . In any even, I
understand the BOC has rubber stamped the changes.


Please forward to me what has been approved.


As you know, I am completely disappointed with the process used to force this down the throats of my fellow neighbors
and I. If you were truly interested in involving the community in this process, more would have been done to notify the
residents of this area of what you were up to .


This rezoning, includ ing the modification of the or iginally approved ord inance within 6 months was, in my opinion ,
deceitful and dishonest . There is no way i'rn going to believe that the " revised" provis ions were not what Pinewood and
Mr Williams intended in the first instance . The commercialization of my neighborhood's surrounding area is appalling
and will ultimately result in lowering our housing values, not yours or you r colleagues.


I am also disappointed that the zoning commission continues to rush to accommodate an indust ry that it has no
experience regulating (and in fact there are no rules in place governing the future behavior of film-makers coming into
th is area). I have lived with the filming industry and have no starry -eyed notions about it . In fact , because of the
existence of the Warner Brothers mega studios, the housing values in Burbank are considerably lower than those of
surround ing areas. If you truly understood "hollywood values" , you would know that the celebrities don't live or eat in
Burbank, just because a studio is there (whether or not they are working on a project at the studio) . It's solely about
networking and the prestige of the restaurant or neighborhood that matters, not the proximity to the studio. I know
better than to believe the "hype".


While you and the BOC continue to present only your assumpt ions about the great benefits these studios wil l bring to
Fayetteville, there are no guarantees or requirements in place to assure that the citizens of Fayetteville receive these
assumed benefits in exchange for the decrease in our property values and the tax perks we will ult imately pay for.


The only light at the end of this dark tunnel is the recent aff irmative rul ing concerning district voting. Perhaps residents
of this area will be informed and heard on issues as important as the re characterization of the area they have chosen to
live in.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman


Sent from my iPad


1







ARTICLE III. DEFINITIONS


Building Height. The vertical distance of a building measured from the median height of the
basement level or crawl space to the midpoint of the highest roof. The midpoint shall be
measured from the ceiling joist of the highest floor level or from where the truss rests on the
highest wall (or opell roof structures. For structures constructed without a basement or crawl
space, the measurement will be taken beginning at the ground floor level. ArehileelHral featHres,
'",hieh are nel HlilizeEi fer haailaale s~aee, shall nel ae inelHEieEi in lhe ealeHlatien ef aHilEiing
heigfil (see T8Hcr Height.! (See also Sec. 5-16. Structures Permitted above the Height Limit!


Soundstage. A room or building used for the shooting o({i/m and video content.


ARTICLE VI.


Sec. 6-26. G-B General Business District. (Adopted 12/13/12)


Sec. 6-26. G-B Geueral Business District. (Adopted 12/13/12)
A. Purpose. The purpose of the General Business District (G-B) is to provide for


business development that contains uses which are free from such nuisances as
noise, vibration, smoke, gas, fume, odor, dust, radiation or other injurious or
noxious conditions related to those uses. The G-B Zoning District limits the
development of retail commercial uses and reduces the resulting traffic generation
and noise associated with this type development. The uses allowed in this zoning
district could lend to a business park development pattern.


B. Permitted Uses. The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the GB Zoning
District:


I. Auction house (indoor only);
2. Banquet hall and/or catering service;
3. Business, professional, and/or govermnent offices;
4. Business support centers and/or call centers;
5. College and/or university, classrooms and/or administration only;
6. Computer data services and/or information technology;
7. Educational/instructional/tutoring facilities, including, but not limited to:


art; computer; dance; driving and/or DUI; martial arts; music;
professional/business/trade; and similar facilities;


8. Financial, credit, real estate, and/or insurance establishments (excluding
retail banking facilities or pawn establishments);


9. Health club, fitness center, and/or indoor athletic facility (excluding
bowling alleys, pool rooms and skating rinks);


10. Medical supply and equipment sales
II. Printing, graphic, blue printing, photography lab, and/or reproduction


service ;
12. Private school, including, classrooms and/or administration only;


1







4.


2.


1.


c.


D.


13. Publishing and distribution;
14. Restaurant supply;
15. Scientific, medical/dental, and/or research laboratories;
16. Television/radio broadcasting studio, recording studio,


telecommunication, and/or movie/media productions (including on-site
with movie/media productions, ancillary businesses that supply support
services, equipment and resources to the movie/media industry) ; and


17. Training center , trade school, and/or vocational centers.
Conditional Uses. The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the G-B
Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Article VII . Conditional
Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone , and Commercial
Development Standards are met:


Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and uses (see Article
V.);
Home Occupation;
College and/or University, including, but not limited to: classrooms,
administration, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium ; and
Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration,
playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium.


Dimensional Requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the G-B
shall be as follows:


1. Lot Area:
a. Where public water is available: 43,560 square feet (one [1] acre)
b. Where public water is not available: 65,340 square feet


(one and one-half [1.5] acres)
2. Lot width: 125 feet
3. Front yard setback:


a. Major thoroughfare:
i. Major Arterial: 100 feet
ii. Arterial: 100 feet
111. Collector: 80 feet


b. Minor thoroughfare: 65 feet
4. Rear yard setback: 25 feet
5. Side yard setback: 25 feet
6. Buffer: If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District,


a minimum buffer of 50 feet shall be provided adjacent to the lot line, in
addition to the required setback. The setback shall be measured from the
buffer.


7. Height limit :
a. 40 feet
b. Onlv soundstages associated with movie/media productions in


this zoning district mav exceed 40 feet in height. The front
setback shall be increased eight (8) feet (or everv one (]) (oot of
building height over 40 feet. JUhe side and/or rear yards abut a


2







residential or A-R zoning district. the setbacks shall be increased
five (5) [eet (or everyone (l) (oat ofbuilding height over 40 [eet.


£:. The required minimum acreage shall be increased based on
building height per the table below:


Heieht Limit Reauired Acreaee
45 feet 10-25
50 feet >25-50
55 feet >50-75
60 feet >75-100
65 feet >100


Option I


Heieht Limit ReauiredAcreaee
50 feet 20-50
55 feet >50-75
60 feet >75-100
65 feet >100


Option 2


8. Lot coverage limit, including structures and parking area: 70 percent of
total lot area.


9. Outside Storage and Refuse Area Requirements. The following
requirements shall apply to outside storage and refuse areas. Where this
section contradicts any other requirement, the most restrictive shall apply.
a. Outside storage of merchandise, equipment, parts, and business


vehicles shall be allowed in side or rear yards only, subject to
screening, setback and buffer requirements.


b. All refuse areas shall be allowed in side or rear yards only, shall be
screened, and comply with the required buffers and setbacks.


3



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight







Audio Agenda
June 13,2013
Page Number 4


authorize thepurchase of eight (8) advanced life support cardiac monitors in theamount of
$239,216.00.


10. Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with theTown of Tyrone,
allowing for the County to resurface nine (9) roads over athree-year period of timewithin theTown
of Tyrone, to providefor laborand equipment atnocostto theTown of Tyrone, and to authorizethe
Chairman to executesaid request.


11 . Approval of a request from theFayette CountyJuvenile Court for authorization to file a grant
application, onbehalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, with the Governor's Office for
Children and Families, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said application.


12. Approval of Sheriff Babb's decision to dispose of theFayette County Sheriff's Office's 2007
Eurocopter S350B2 Helicopter, with proceeds from thesale ortrade of this aircraftto beplaced into
Equitable Sharing Funds to be used for lawenforcement purposes.


13. Approval of Sheriff' Babb's decisionto return aFuel Truck, which was on loan to the Fayette County
Sheriff's Office, to the Georgia Department of Public Safety Excess Property Program.


14. Approval of Sheriff Babb's decision to dispose ofnumerous unusual uniforms and equipment items,
and to dispose of said items in an appropriate manner.


15. Approval of staff's recommendationto dispose of turnout gear that is no longer serviceable andto
donate uniformpants and shirtsto the Real LifeCenter.


16. Approval of staff's recommendation to declare thirty (30) county vehicles asunserviceable, to sell
theunserviceable assets byutilizingtheGovDeals internet web site, and for all proceeds to be
returned to theVeh icleReplacement Fund.


17. Approval of the May 23, 201 3Budget Meeting Minutes, the May 23, 2013 Board of Commissioners'
Meeting Minutes, and the May 30, 2013 Special Called Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


~18. Discussion of proposed amendments to theFayette County Zoning Ordinance concerningbuilding
height in theGeneral·Business (G-B) Zoning District.


CommunityDevelopment Director Pete Frisinaand Mr, Bill Foley, the architect working with Pinewood
Studios, updated the Board on some ofthe workthat had beendone bystaffand the Planning Department
concerning amending the zoningordinance for the heights ofmoviestudios in the General Business (G-B)
Zoning District. He reportedthatthe Planning Commissionand staff, working incooperation with Fayette
citizens, developed two options forconsideration, Hesaid the firstoption was favoredbythe Planning
Commission, and the second option was favored bystaff, He added thatthecitizens seemed to be split on
the options, Mr.Frisina said he originally wanted a45-foot height limit, butsince Fayette Countyhad not
had amovie studiobefore, and since anewzoning district was being created, the county set the height at a
40-foot heightlimit because, at the time, it was the highest limit in the county's zoning district. He added
that anothermovie studiooperatorin Fayette Countyfavoredthe second oplion since it gave him the abil ity







Audio Agenda
June 13, 2013
Page Number 5


to have a50' bUild ing instead ofa45' building. Discussion followedconcerning the construction ofother
televisionstudios, the need for additional height, similar structures in other jurisdictions throughout Georgia
and the United States, and the opportunities in Fayette County.


Mr. Frisina saidhe wanted to move forward inorder toget the proposed amendments to Public Hearing.
He anticipated their approval in July. The Board consented toallow the proposed amendments to
considered inPubiicHearing.


NEW BUSINESS:


19. Consideration of Chairman Steve Brown's nomination of Ms. Irene Cheyne to theFayette County
Region SixMental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Addictive Diseases Regional Planning
Board, for a term to begin June 13,2013 and to expire September 30, 2014.


Chairman Brown commented on the selection ofMs. Irene Cheyne tothe Region SixMental Health Board.


Commissioner Ogniomoved to approve Chairman SteveBrown's nominationof Ms. Irene Cheyne to the
Fayette County Region Six Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Addictive Diseases Regional
Pianning Board, for a term to beginJune 13, 2013 and to expire September 30,2014. Commissioner
Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.


20. Consideration of the appointment of Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett and Division Chief of EMS and
Administration Steve Folden to theRegion Four Emergency Medical Services Council for atwo-year
term to commence on July 1,2013 and ending onJune 30, 2015.


Chairman Brown commented on the appointment process to the Region Four EmergencyMedical Services
Council.


Commissioner McCarty moved toapprove the appointment of Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett and Division
ChiefofEMS and Administration Steve Folden to the Region Four EmergencyMedical Services Council for
a two-year term to commence on July 1,2013 and ending on June 30, 2015. Commissioner Oddo
seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.


ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORTS:


Authorization to Execute Stormwater Management Special Maintenance Agreements: County Administrator
Steve Rapson asked the Board toauthorize the Chairman toexecute Special Maintenance Agreements for
Stormwater Management controls. He explained that the SpecialMaintenance Agreements are afunction of the
Stormwater UtilityOrdinance, and as "lhe entities comes intoexistence, it requires acontract to be executed on
behalf ofthe County, and executed bythe Chairman." Interim CountyAttorney Dennis Davenport agreed, adding
thai the agreements are standard documents to take care ofStormwaterManagement Controis, and inorder to be
effective and binding, they have to be signed bythe Chairman. He suggested that rather than bringing each
agreement tothe Board as it comes up, that the Board could issue ablanket authorization authorizing the Chairman
to execute the agreements. Discussion followed.


Commissioner Ognio moved togive the Chairman the authority to sign contracts relating to Stormwater.
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.







THE FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION met on April 18, 2013 at 7:00 P.M.
in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Board of
Commissioners Conference Room, Suite 100, Fayetteville, Georgia.


MEMBERS PRESENT:


MEMBERS ABSENT:


STAFF PRESENT:


Al Gilbert, Chairman
Jim Graw, Vice-Chairman
Douglas Powell


Bill Beckwith
Tim Thoms


Pete Frisina, Director of Community Services
Patrick Stough, Interim County Attorney
Phil Mallon, County Engineer
Hank Derbyshire, Marshal


Welcome and Call to Order:


Chairman Gilbert called the Planning Commission Meeting to order. Chairman Gilbert
introduced Hank Derbyshire of the Marshal's office and Pete Frisina of Planning and Zoning and
the Commission Members Doug Powell, Jim Graw and Chairman Gilbert, Chairman. Chairman
Gilbert stated that Bill Beckwith and Tim Thoms were absent and the chairman recognized
David Brill with the North Fayette Community Association.


* * * * * * * * * *


1. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on April 4, 2013.


Jim Graw made a motion to approve the minutes. Doug Powell seconded the motion. The
motion passed unanimously 3-0. Bill Beckwith and Tim Thoms were absent.


NEW BUSINESS


-*"2. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Bnsiness District
regarding: building height.


Pete Frisina stated this building height issue came up with the rezoning for the Pinewood movie
studio and the Staff Report cited items that were in conflict with County regulations that would
need to be discussed in terms of possible ordinance amendments. He said the height of 65 feet is
for the soundstage portion of the buildings and the soundstage is basically a shell where the sets
are built and there is a catwalk where the riggings and lights will hang and the Board has asked
the staff and Planning Commission to look at this issue. He said he what he has prepared for
discussion is a definition for a "soundstage" and a proposal in G-B that a soundstage only could
be 65 feet high but for every foot the building is over 40 feet the setback will increase. He







Page 2
April 18, 2013
PC Meeting


said this ratio increase in a setback is standard for zoning and the County currently has similar
regulations in A-R for agricultural structures such as silos.


Jim Graw said the proposal states "for soundstages associated with movie/media productions."


Pete Frisina responded that that is the listed use within the G-B district.


Doug Powell asked if these proposed amendments would allow the studio owner on SR 138 to
go up to 45 feet as he originally wanted.


Pete Frisina responded that it would give him the ability to go to 45 feet or higher as long as he
could meet the increased setbacks.


Al Gilbert said he thought we should look at all of the non-residential zoning districts in terms of
building height as a Conditional Use with certain criteria that would need to be met such as a
minimum lot size like 250 acres so you couldn't have a small postage stamp size lot with a 65
foot tower.


Doug Powell said the increased setbacks may not allow a large structure on a small lot.


Jim Graw said he was concerned about the property on SR 138 because there are homes around
the property and a 65 foot building may not be appropriate in the area and he likes the
Conditional Use aspect of setting criteria such as lot size. He said he does not know what the
purpose of increasing the setbacks achieves .


Al Gilbert said it pushes the buildings further from the road.


Jim Graw said if you have 250 acres the buildings will be well off the road anyway.


Pete Frisina said the standard setback in the G-B is 100 feet from the right-of-way and based on
this proposal and increase from a building height of 40 feet to 65 feet would increase the front
setback from 100 feet to 225 feet.


Doug Powell said that he would want to make sure that the setback increase did not create a
problem for the Pinewood studio.


Pete Frisina stated that the Pinewood studio had the soundstages set back 300 feet from the road.


Doug Powell asked if the property of SR 138 is large enough to allow a taller building.


Pete Frisina said if the building was increased from 40 feet to 45 feet it would increase the
setback to 125 feet but an increase to 65 feet would increase the setback to 225 feet.







Page 3
April 18, 2013
PC Meeting


Doug Powell said that could push the building back to the back of the lot.


Jim Graw suggested increasing the base building height in G-B to 45 feet and then anything
higher than 45 feet would be a Conditional Use.


Doug Powell said the only question is; are we comfortable with a base building height of 45 feet
in G-B.


Jim Graw said allowing a 65 foot building on SR 138 may not be a good idea as there are more
homes in that area.


Al Gilbert said is there a way to determine how much of the building will be visible from the
road and make that part of the Conditional Use.


Doug Powell asks what happens ifthe elevation of the road changes.


Jim Graw said the property on SR 138 is flat and there is no change in elevation.


Doug Powell said that if you move the structure back from the road as the height is increased
then the perspective would remain the same. He said his concern is; are we setting precedence
for 65 feet.


Pete Frisina said we would set a regulation for 65 feet which is beyond precedence.


Patrick Stough said but it is limited to soundstages only.


Al Gilbert said that in the past it was implied that the 35 foot height limit was based on fire
protection and if you see the response from the Fire Chief they don't have a concern as long as
people are not occupying that area.


Pete Frisina said in the past 35 feet was an issue with the Fire Department's ladders but now they
have ladder trucks that go up higher. He added the fire marshal's comment say that he is not
concerned with these types of buildings with 65 feet as this is not occupied space.


Doug Powell asked what would happen if someone in G-B wanted a 65 foot tall non-retail office
structure, basically five stories tall.


Pete Frisina said the proposal limits it to soundstages only.


Doug Powell said but by approving the soundstages at 65 feet are we not opening up ourselves to
be challenged for occupied buildings at 65 feet.







Page 4
April 18, 2013
PC Meeting


Patrick Stough said the justification to limiting it to soundstages , is the area at 65 feet is an
unoccupied space where an office building is occupied and has a different fire safety concern.


Jim Graw asked if the studio proposed on SR 138 would have soundstages that fit into this
definition.


Pete Frisina said he thought the studio on SR 138 would have soundstages that meet this
definition.


Doug Powell he didn't know ifhe would raise the building height to 45 feet and would leave it at
40 with the increased setbacks for greater building height.


Jim Graw asked; what is the reasoning of increasing the setback in relation to the building
height.


Pete Frisina said that it was a standard zoning practice and the County has something in A-R for
agricultural structures such as silos and it keeps the visual perceptive from the road.


Patrick Stough said the further from the road the less high the structure appears .


Doug Powell asked if the height setback ratio should be made a Conditional Use.


Jim Graw said we should make it a Conditional Use and add a lot size requirement.


Doug Powell asked Patrick Stough for his opinion on the Conditional Use suggestion of
requiring additional acreage for an increase in the building height.


Patrick Stough said it is something we could add, but he questions how the increased setback
would affect the property on SR 138.


Pete Frisina said he had not looked the property to determine how it would be affected.


Jim Graw asked if the increased setback was a way to preclude small properties from getting 65
feet.


Pete Frisina said we only have two properties in the County zoned G-B and the property on SR
138 may have enough room to allow a 65 foot building but it would be pushed back further from
the road and surrounding properties.


Jim Graw said this looks like a way to prevent somebody with a small lot from increasing their
setbacks and you add a requirement for 250 acres.







Page 5
April 18, 2013
PC Meeting


Pete Frisina said requiring 250 acres would really prevent a 65 foot building.


Jim Graw said it would prevent the 65 foot building but you are limiting it based on acreage and
not space on the lot.


Pete Frisina said it would allow someone to increase building height on a small lot to the point
where they can't meet the setback and if we limit to 250 acres we have precluded any property
under 250 acres.


Jim Graw said that is right and you are not forcing someone into something like an increased
setback and they know coming in they don't have 250 acres and they can't have 65 feet, or 200
acres I don't know what the exact number needs to be required.


Patrick Stough said the issue is agreeing on the number of acres.


Al Gilbert said if you set a number of acres, what happens when the next studio comes in and
they don't have the required acreage and we have to change it again.


Pete Frisina said he recently has had two issues with building height with other buildings in other
zoning districts such as churches that were allowed to be higher than 35 feet and rumor is it was
based on unoccupied space but the ordinance should have been changed to address this when the
church was built and another recent instance is an industrial facility that needs clearance for a
crane mechanism to build electrical components that are 30 feet tall that need clearance for the
build to prevent electrical arching, so we are dealing with some uses we have never seen before.


Al Gilbert said again we may have to look at all the nonresidential zoning categories with the
Issue.


Jim Graw asked if the property on SR 138 could meet the increase setbacks .


Pete Frisina said he didn't know.


David Brill suggested increasing the front setback ratio to 10 feet for everyone foot of building
height and the side and rear setback ratio to five feet for everyone foot of building height and
would it be guaranteed that the additional space would be greenspace .


Pete Frisina said that only a soundstage and or portion of a soundstage that is greater than 35 feet
would have to meet the increased setback and buildings of 40 feet or less would just meet the
standard G-B setbacks.


Patrick Stough suggested increasing the front setback ratio to 8 feet for everyone foot of
building height suggested that would make the setback 300 feet.







Page 6
April 18, 2013
PC Meeting


Jim Graw asked what are the side and rear setbacks in G-B.


Pete Frisina said both side and rear setbacks would be a 50 foot buffer and a 25 foot setback.


Doug Powell asked what the timeline is for this amendment.


Pete Frisina said it is on a fast turnaround.


Doug Powell said we need to look at the two properties and determine the right distances to
propose.


Jim Graw said we need to know if we increase the front to eight feet and the side and rear to five
feet how it affects the property on SR 138 and he does not want to see a 65 foot building on SR
138.


Doug Powel said he would like to know what this formula does to the property on SR 138.


Pete Frisina said he wanted Mr. Brill and the Fayette Community Association to be aware of any
changes so we could get their input.


Al Gilbert asked Pete Frisina to look at the two properties and determine how the various
formulas that were discussed tonight would affect them and present this at the next meeting and
also asked ifhe could research if there are any acreage requirements for buildings in other zoning
ordinances we could review.


Doug Powell asked; what is the schedule for the annexation of the Pinewood studios because we
are making changes to our ordinances that may not be even needed especially if the property is
annexed into the city.


3. Discussion of the dedication of right-of-way associated with the platting of lots and
the Hanners Plat


Pete Frisina said we have an issue with the dedication of right-of-way per the Subdivision
Regulations and the dedication of right-of-way reducing the lot size below the required minimum
lot size and he has not encountered this before. He added that the Phil Mallon had come up with
and innovative solution of getting an easement instead of right-of-way, however the ordinance
requires right-of-way. He said he talked to legal today about the issue.


Patrick Stough said the issue is the property owner has come to the County with a plat that has
five acres as required for A-R and our ordinance requires right-of-way which will brings the lot
under five acres, however the only reason it is below five acres is the County is asking for right-







Page 2
May 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Pete Frisina replied 4.92 acres.


Mr. Rice said that as a good summary from last week's meeting .


Doug Powell made a motion to approve the Minor Subdivision Plat as submitted.


Bill Beckwith seconded the motion.


Jim Graw said on March 21st the Planning Commission approved a variance of the Contiguous
Area to 1.38 acres and this plat indicates the Contiguous Area as 1.57 acres and does the
Planning Commission need to approve a variance of 1.57 tonight.


Pete Frisina replied the variance allowed the lot to go down to 1.38 acres of Contiguous Area but
since it exceeds 1.38 acres there is not a conflict so another variance is not necessary.


Chairman Gilbert called the question. The motion passed unanimously 5-0.


OLD BUSINESS


~ 3. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Business District
regarding: building height.


Pete Frisina stated this building height issue came up with the rezoning for the Pinewood movie
studio and the Staff Report cited items that were in conflict with County regulations that would
need to be discussed in terms of possible ordinance amendments . He said the Board of
Commissioners has given staff direction to review the building height to accommodate movie
studios. He added the proposal is to allow the height of 65 feet for a soundstage building and for
every foot the building is over 40 feet the front setback will increase by eight (8) feet and the
side and rear setbacks will increase by five (5) feet and this is a standard zoning practice and the
county has something similar in A-R for agricultural building such as silos and windmills. He
said the question from the last meeting is if this is allowed in G-B how will it affect the property
on SR 138 as it is the only other property zoned G-B and based on the plat submitted with the
rezoning there is a portion of the property where the proposed setbacks for a 65 foot tall
soundstage could be met and the area comprises approximately two (2) acres that is 300 feet
from the front property line and 200 feet from the side property lines.


Doug Powell asked if there has been any indication from Mr. Williams that he would want a 65
foot soundstage.







Page 3
May 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Pete Frisina replied that Mr. Williams indicated that he would like the same consideration as the
Pinewood property to be competitive. He added that he had invited Mr. Williams to the meeting
and hoped he would be here tonight.


Doug Powell stated that originally Mr. Williams wanted 45 feet of height and we limited G-B to
40 feet and his concern is that went through the public process and the citizens in that area of the
county were involved.


Pete Frisina said we limited it to 40 feet because at the time that was the tallest build the county
allows in any zoning district.


Doug Powell said his concern is with the citizens that thought it was a done deal with 40 feet and
now here we are considering 65 feet.


Jim Graw said he has the same concerns as Doug Powell.


Tim Thoms said it can't be 65 feet until the ordinance is changed.


Pete Frisina passed a picture around of a crane mast that was 65 feet tall taken at approximately
300 feet away to give some perspective to the presence of a 65 foot high structure.


David Brill said he measured his house at 31 feet today to get an impression of how high a 65
foot building would be and he said it would be a six (6) story building.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said you can take a field trip to California and see what those big
monolithic buildings look like and it is one thing to put them out on Sandy Creek Road on a big
forested lot and another thing to put one right in the back of a residential neighborhood in the
north end of this county and what Mr. Williams said he was going to do is produce TV shows
and not major motion pictures like Pinewood and why he would need 65 feet to produce TV
shows it makes her wonder what they were talking about in the first place.


Bill Beckwith asked ifMr. Williams indicated that he was going to build a building that tall.


Doug Powel replied that Mr. Williams indicated the he wanted 45 feet.


Bill Beckwith asked ifhe indicated that he wanted 65 feet.


Pete Frisina said he has now.


Jim Graw said he has driven past this area on SR 138 and this property is an open field.


Pete Frisina said the property is next to the back of the Catholic School and is pasture land.







Page 4
May 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Jim Graw said he is very concerned about a 65 foot building on that property in that area because
of the residents and we talked about a 40 foot building height and now we are talking about a 65
foot building and he feels that 65 feet in that area is just too tall of a building even if it is 300 feet
off ofthe road and 200 feet from the sides.


Chairman Gilbert said 65 feet in the area where Pinewood is located seems fine he is not sure
that it fits on SR 138 and he thinks we should limit it on the number of acres.


Jim Graw said we should limit it to 100 acres and he got the 100 acres from the Planned
Entertainment Farming PUD, so the county has used 100 acres for a minimum before.


Bill Beckwith asked what we consider media, is TV production media.


Pete Frisina said the term "media" is used in the G-B zoning district.


Jim Graw said we have two situations with G-B and we need to find a way to separate them and
acreage is a way to do that and he also likes the increased setbacks. He added that there is not
100 acres available on SR 138 based on the area designated for G-B.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman asked instead of changing the entire ordinance why can't the county just
make an exception for Pinewood studios.


Doug Powel said that had we had time the county could have developed a Planned Unit
Development type zoning to provide control and flexibility.


Tim Thoms said at the last meeting conditional zoning was discussed.


Patrick Stough said conditional zoning is used to restrict property.


Tim Thoms said he meant Condition Use not conditional zoning and could we use Conditional
Use restrictions for soundstages.


Pete Frisina said that Conditional Use restrictions could be created and they would be in Article
VII.


Tim Thoms asked if someone makes application for G-B and they want to do something out of
the scope of G-B would they ask for a conditional zoning or a variance .


Jim Graw said a Condition Use would need to be established.


Tim Thoms asked if we make a soundstage a Conditional Use would you take it out of the
Permitted Use ofthe zoning .







Page 5
May 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Pete Frisina replied that Tim was using the terms "Conditional Use" and "conditional zoning"
synonymously and they are similar but different as conditional zoning is applied in a rezoning to
restrict over and above the basic zoning requirements and Conditional Use are written into the
zoning ordinance and also restrict over and above the basic zoning requirements.


Chairman Gilbert said we need to think about this in other zoning districts because we have a
situation in an industrial park that needs a taller building as well and churches that want taller
buildings and in some cases it fine and it others it is not.


Tim Thoms said for clarification once someone meets the Conditional Uses you can establish the
use.


Patrick Stough replied that was correct.


Doug Powell said based on the proposed setbacks the property on SR 138 could meet the
setbacks for a 65 foot building so in developing these standards we need to consider the size of
the lot and this property would be limited to 40 feet even though it could meet the setbacks for
65 feet.


Tim Thoms said he didn't understand how 100 acres relates to a movie studio as it seems meant
to exclude the SR 138 area and he didn't agree with the limitation.


Jim Graw said in part it does exclude the SR 138 area.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said her question is still why the county can't treat Pinewood as an
exception.


Pete Frisina said because the zomng ordinance does not have a mechanism to provide
exceptions.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman so there IS no way to write something in the ordinance to allow an
exception.


Pete Frisina said currently there is a variance procedure but it is based on a hardship that relates
to problems with the lot configuration.


Bill Beckwith said variances are not for convenience.


Pete Frisina said he had hoped that Mr. Williams would be at the meeting as he owns a G-B
property and he feels we need his input as well. He said Mr. Williams expressed to him that he
didn't want to be in a position where he couldn't compete in the market place. Pete Frisina







Page 6
May 2, 2013
PC Meeting


suggested that we look at a range of acreages and additional landscaping to screen the buildings
using berms and trees.


Doug Powell said what you are suggesting is the structure height be related to acreage and also
require increased setbacks .


Pete Frisina stated that was correct.


Chairman Gilbert stated a range of acreage thresholds is a good idea.


David Brill said that seemed like a fair approach.


Pete Frisina said the other issues that have come up lately is an industrial building that needs to
exceed the height limits and a church that wants to do the same. He said the industrial building
has a 10 foot clearance requirement for the manufacturing of high voltage testing equipment due
to potential arching and a crane mechanism that will be installed in the top of the building,
however, if the setback ratio we are discussing is applied there will be no room to build the
structure. He said there is also an issue with churches as well and added he has reviewed
Peachtree City's ordinance and they do not limit the height of churches and industrial buildings
but the buildings must meet structural and fire codes and could have additional conditions placed
on industrial development through the site plan process. He said Fayetteville limits commercial
and industrial buildings to 60 feet. He added that there are some churches in the county that are
higher than 35 feet and he isn't totally clear on how these were approved .


Patrick Stough said his understanding was the height limit did not apply because it was not
occupiable space.


Pete Frisina said to his knowledge the ordinance was not amended to address this situation.


Chairman Gilbert said if someone is building a church they will question how those other
churches got approved.


Pete Frisina said he didn't know exactly how it was handled at that time and he would continue
to research the records but he would like to correct the ordinance. He added that if the setback
ratio we are discussing is applied there will be no room to build the church.


Jim Graw said he is familiar with this industrial park.


Tim Thoms said the park backs up to a residential area.


Jim Graw said that are a lot of trees behind this property.







Page 7
May 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Doug Powell pointed out that the top of this building will not be occupied space and if we make
changes to G-B then someone will want the same height in another zoning district.


Pete Frisina said we should address this in each zoning district.


Chairman Gilbert recommended that staff prepare proposed building height requirements
amendments for industrial and churches.


Doug Powell asked what we are going to do with G-B.


Pete Frisina said he really wanted Mr. Williams' input as well. He added that the suggestion
tonight was to add an acreage requirement and to look at a range of required acreages .


Chairman Gilbert said he liked the range of acreage approach adding so much height per 25 or so
acres up to 100 acres.


Jim Graw said another option is to increase the standard height requirement in G-B to 45 feet.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said the county set a standard of 40 feet and now we are considering
changing it 45 feet and she asks what people in the area can rely on if the requirements can be
constantly changed and would an increased setback and acreage still be part of raising the
standard height to 45 feet.


Pete Frisina said the setback could still be increased.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said in her opinion, the ordinance should be amended to address Pinewood
because it is a much larger operation on a much bigger property and 65 feet would be appropriate
there and treat them as an exception and not rewrite an ordinance that was put in place just three
months ago. She said she is not in favor of amending the ordinance in a way that affects the
property on SR 138 by allowing a taller building.


Doug Powell said the BOC has asked us to look at this building height issue with the new studio
as these studios are looked upon as economic development they have been approved to build
their facility in a G-B zoning.


Tim Thoms said the zoning has been approved but the building height has not been increased
yet.


Doug Powell said that Tim was correct.


Tim Thoms asked if the increased setback would apply to the rear yard as well.







Page 8
May 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Pete Frisina said the increase would include the rear yard as well.


Tim Thoms said he is not in favor of increasing the building height in G-B and he is not in favor
of a 65 foot building on Sandy Creek Road or SR 138. He knows that Pinewood needs to be
accommodated as they are a larger company and he doesn't fault Mr. Williams for wanting the
same thing Pinewood wants to be competitive.


Bill Beckwith asks why Tim doesn't think that a 65 foot building is appropriate on Sandy Creek
Road.


Tim Thoms said it is an agricultural area or it was an agricultural area until the county rezoned
the Pinewood property, but it makes a huge impact and the applicant never shared the balloon
test pictures they mentioned at the rezoning but a 65 foot building will stick out like a sore
thumb.


Bill Beckwith said if the people that are in this business are rezoned and they know what they
need, why would you say it is not right.


Tim Thoms said I can't say they don't need 65 feet, he said it shouldn't be in that area and they
were approved G-B with a 40 foot height limitation.


Bill Beckwith said but they need 65 feet and we have been asked to look at the ordinance.


Tim Thoms said he thinks a 65 foot building is out of character in the agricultural-residential
area.


Bill Beckwith said the area is agricultural-residential now but it is changing and it is close to the
hospital.


Tim Thoms said in his opinion a 65 foot building is out of character for the county but he thinks
the increased setbacks is a way to mitigate the height.


Doug Powell said when this property is annexed it will be under the city building height
requirements.


Jim Graw said we don't know when the annexation will take place and they will start building
these studios in the county and they need to know ifthey can build at 65 feet.


Doug Powell said the problem is we are changing our ordinance knowing that the property is
going into Fayetteville and we are changing the entire G-B zoning district.







Page 9
May 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Pete Frisina said the movie business is one of the major growth industries in the state of Georgia
and if this is the industry standard we may have to deal with this again in the future if another
studio wants to locate in the County and we need to find a balance where we can between the
neighborhoods and Mr. Williams and we already have Pinewood's input. He said he would take
the suggestions from tonight and hopefully Mr. Williams can make the next meeting and we can
continue the discussion.


Chairman Gilbert said that we should raise the standard building height to 45 feet as the property
on SR 138 will find it hard to compete.


Aisha Abdur-Rahrnan said the county should start with 40 feet not 45 feet.


Doug Powell said we also have to understand the argument from the neighborhood's perspective.


Chairman Gilbert said he understood their opinion as well.


Jim Graw asked where would we start, does 25 acres allow 45 feet and then we go up
incrementally from there .


Chairman Gilbert said let staff work on it and bring something back for discussion.


Jim Graw said Mr. Williams said he could work with 40 feet.


Chairman Gilbert said we capped the zoning district at 40 feet, what choice did he have. He said
that we need look at Mr. Williams' property to be fair.


David Brill asked Tim Thoms what building height he would be comfortable with in the county.


Tim Thoms said he didn' t know exactly right now and he wonders if there are other uses in G-B
that may not be able to meet a 40 foot building height such as a recreational facility or gym.


Pete Frisina said Tim Thoms makes a good point and Fayette County could be at a turning point
and we need to determine if we can still afford to be a bedroom community as the residential
property has lost a great deal of value during the recession and may never regain their initial
mortgage value and remain underwater and the new homes being built in the county now are not
as big as were being built in the past and therefore have less value which affects tax revenue so
we have to look at diversifying the tax base and movie studios and the like may be the way to go.


Tim Thoms said with that in mind if the county needs to intersperse 65 foot tall buildings
amongst residential zoning and the only reason we controlled height in the past was for fire
control and now we have ladder trucks and it not an issue then we need to find a defining point
for height limitations, such as aesthetics or do we need any limit at all.







THE FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION met on May 16,2013 at 7:00 P.M.
in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Board of
Commissioners Conference Room, Suite 100, Fayetteville, Georgia.


MEMBERS PRESENT:


MEMBERS ABSENT:


STAFF PRESENT:


Al Gilbert, Chairman
Douglas Powell
Bill Beckwith
Tim Thoms


Jim Graw, Vice-Chairman


Pete Frisina, Director of Community Services
Dennis Dutton, Zoning Administrator
Travis Caldwell, Marshal
James Williamson, Marshal


Welcome and Call to Order:


Chairman Gilbert called the Planning Commission Meeting to order. Chairman Gilbert
introduced Travis Caldwell ofthe Marshal's office and Dennis Dutton and Pete Frisina of
Planning and Zoning. Chairman Gilbert introduced the Commission Members Doug Powell, Bill
Beckwith, and Chairman Gilbert, Chairman and added that Tim Thoms would be late and Jim
Graw would not be attending the meeting tonight. Chairman Gilbert recognized David Brill
with the North Fayette Community Association, Aisha Abdur-Rahman and Alvin Williams.
Alice Jones entered the meeting later.


* * * * * * * * * *


1. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on May 2, 2013.


Bill Beckwith made the motion to approve the minutes . Doug Powell seconded the motion. The
motion unanimously passed 3-0. Members voting in favor of approval were : Chairman Al
Gilbert, Bill Beckwith, and Doug Powell. Tim Thoms and Jim Graw were absent.


OLD BUSINESS


Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Bnsiness District
regarding: building height.


Tim Thoms entered the meeting.


Pete Frisina stated this building height issue came up with the rezoning for the Pinewood movie
studio and the Board of Commissioners has given staff direction to review the building height to
accommodate movie studios . He said to review from the last meeting, the proposal is to allow
the height of 65 feet for a soundstage building and for every foot the building is over 40 feet the







Page 2
May 16, 2013
PC Meeting


front setback will increase by eight (8) feet and the side and rear setbacks will increase by five
(5) feet and the Planning Commission had recommended that an acreage range be added to the
requirements where for every five (5) foot increment of building height over 40 feet to 65 feet an
additional 25 acres would be required . He said staff developed two options for the acre range
and the only difference is Option I starts at 45 feet of build height with 10 to 25 acres and Option
2 starts at 50 feet of building height with 10 to 50 acres.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said this ordinance as it is currently written with 40 feet of building height
only applies to lots of 10 acres or more.


Pete Frisina said the proposed increase in building height would only apply to soundstages.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said that she never thought we were anticipating a soundstage on a lot as
small as 10 acres.


Pete Frisina said since G-B allows a one (1) acre lot he wanted to start with something bigger
and a ten acre lot is a pretty good sized lot for starting purposes.


Doug Powell said right now with one (1) acre you could have a 40 foot building so what these
amendments suggest is to have more building height you have to have more acreage and greater
setbacks the higher you go.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said, why permit the height increase with ten acres, why not start the
acreage ranges at 25 acres?


Pete Frisina said even at 10 acres you would still need to meet the same setback as 25 acres.


Bill Beckwith said 10 acres is a pretty sizable lot.


Pete Frisina agreed.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said she objects to allowing a building height increase with only 10 acres.


Pete Frisina said the Planning Commission had asked staff to research approaches to mitigating
building height and found recommended measures including: broken wall planes, facade
modulation, pitched roof elements, varied wall finishes and building mass that conforms to site
contours. He said the architectural requirements in the SR 138 and SR 314 overlay zone cover
the broken wall planes, facade modulation, pitched roof elements and varied wall finishes and
the proposed increased for setbacks based on building height address conforms the building mass
to the site contours .







Page 3
May 16,2013
PC Meeting


Alvin Williams said he was in favor of Option 2 based on his property which is close to 25 acres
and Option 2 would allow him to build a 50 foot tall building. He added a 50 foot building
would allow him to build a two story set within the building and a 45 foot building would not
give him the room to build a two story set.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said this zoning district was passed less than six (6) months ago and we
went to the citizens and you said you can live with 40 feet and now you want 50 feet so what is
the intent here and are the citizens going to feel like they were bamboozled.


Doug Powell said he agrees with Aisha Abdur-Rahman and the citizens in the area went through
the process to create this zoning. He added that originally Alvin Williams had asked for 45 feet
but the zoning was capped at 40 feet and he didn't know that everybody was happy with that
height but that is what was approved. Doug Powell said he was in favor of Option 1 and he
thinks the citizens in this area would be in favor of Option1 as well.


Alvin Williams said he respects Doug Powell's position but he respectively disagrees because at
that time he was the only individual proposing to build a film and television studio and now
Pinewood is coming into the marketplace which changes things as they are an international
movie studio that will be much larger than his facility. He added his rezoning opened the door
for movie studios in Fayette County and if you want to hold him to 40 or 45 feet, hold Pinewood
to 40 or 45 feet. He said as a resident of Fayette County he would not want Pinewood held to
less than 65 feet and he would not want to be held to less than 65 feet because both facilities will
have a positive economic impact on the county but to be fair to him and his business peers if you
keep him at less than 65 feet you need to keep Pinewood at less than 65 feet.


Bill Beckwith said if you have more than 100 acres as this proposal recommends you could have
65 feet.


Alvin Williams said his intent was to rezone only 25 acres on SR 138 of the 85 acre tract to
protect the surrounding residential areas as he plans to live on the remainder of the property. He
said that he is willing to compromise at 50 feet because it will allow him to stay competitive,
however if he is held to 40 of 45 feet he cannot be competitive.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said to Alvin Williams that he was not supposed to be competing with
Pinewood's movie studio because that is not what you said you were going to do.


Alvin Williams said at the time he was the only studio being proposed for Fayette County and to
be competitive he needs to have similar rules as Pinewood will have.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said to Alvin Williams not what he said he was going to do.


Alvin Williams said at the time Pinewood had not been proposed.







Page 4
May 16, 2013
PC Meeting


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said to Alvin Williams that Pinewood should not have an effect on what
Mr. Williams told the community he was going to build on SR 138 as he said he was going to
film television shows and you could work in a 40 foot building.


Alvin Williams said you are giving pinewood a 65 foot building and if he could get 65 feet it
would allow him the do the same type of production Pinewood is able to accomplish. Alvin
Williams said Pinewood has changed the situation and all he wants is for the County to be fair to
him.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said to Alvin Williams that he needs to be fair to the residents of the area.


Chairman Gilbert asked everyone to address their comments to the Planning Commission.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said the residents understood 40 feet would meet the intent so now don't
change because another company has come into the county.


Alvin Williams said the intent changed because Pinewood came into the picture and when the
county was working with him to create the zoning and rezone his property he was told that 40
feet was going to be the maximum height so he didn't have a choice. He added that he
understood that the County needs to be careful when they create new regulations but he doesn't
want to be treated unfairly when Pinewood will get the ability to build up to 65 feet and he will
be held to 40 or 45 feet and he is in favor of Option 2 which gives him, the ability to build at 50
feet.


David Brill suggested in Option 2 that the starting acreage be 25 acres for a 50 foot building.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said that still allows someone to build up to 50 feet with 25 acres.


David Brill said it does not allow 50 feet on a lot of less than 25 acres.


Pete Frisina said that Alvin Williams is just less than 25 acres so that is why he started the
acreage at 10 acres.


David Brill suggested starting the acreage at 20 acres to allow some increase in building height
but insist on a minimum amount of acreage .


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said that the bottom line is aesthetics and she doesn't even think a 40 foot
building belongs in a residential neighborhood.


Alice Jones said we need to consider fairness as an equitable situation and consider all sides of
this issue given the present ordinance and the business concerns.







PageS
May 16,2013
PC Meeting


Tim Thoms said that initially he didn't think a 65 foot building belonged anywhere in
unincorporated Fayette County but he drove by the Pinewood site and they have started a berm
along the road and the site slopes down where the buildings will be located so those building will
be less visible. He added that he is not as familiar with the site on SR 138 because there is a row
of pine trees along the road .


Alvin Williams said the pine trees will help block the view on his property.


Tim Thoms said wasn 't as familiar with the area on SR 138 but there are some neighborhood s
close by.


Pete Frisina said the site on SR 138 backs up to a portion ofDix-Lee-On subdivision.
Tim Thoms said we have to look at the future as well as the existing properties and try to be
equitable. He added that the increased setbacks combined with minimum acreage are a good
approach and he is leaning toward Option 1.


Alvin Williams said he would like to restate his earlier comment and he doesn't think it is a good
idea to hold Pinewood to less than 65 feet because they need that for the product they produce
because the economic impact they will have on the County will be great. He added that what he
likes about these meetings is the people involved here are great stewards of the County and have
the best interests of the County in mind. He said any consideration for a building of greater than
40 feet that can be given to his site would help him remain competitive and that is all he can ask.


Doug Powell said when Alvin Williams first came in he asked for 45 feet and the County gave
him 40 feet and he asked Alvin Williams how he came up with 45 feet.


Alvin Williams said he needs a five (5) foot clear area between the set and the roof for riggings,
lights, and fire safety as the lights get very hot and that is why he initially requested 45 feet. He
added that if he could get a 50 foot building he could build a two story set which would be more
economical.


Doug Powell said Option 1 gives you 45 feet.


Alvin Williams said the higher the building the more he can do in terms of sets.


Doug Powel said we are giving you what you originally wanted in the first place with Option I
and we don't want everyone on every G-B lot to have the ability to build up to 65 feet unless
they have a lot of property. Doug Powell asked what other zonings are in the County that allows
the property owner to do more based on the amount of property.


Chairman Gilbert said that the more acreage you have in residential zoning the more horses you
could have.







Page 6
May 16, 2013
PC Meeting


Doug Powel said the point is the County has in practice allowed greater usage of property based
on the amount of acreage and that is the principal we are applying with building height in G-B.


Alvin Williams said his request started the process of creating the G-B zoning district and
acreage was not tied to building height initially. He added that he understands what the County
is trying to do now because of Pinewood studios and acreage is another method to control the
development but because of Pinewood other studios will be interested in coming into Fayette
County.


Tim Thoms asked Alvin Williams if he had looked at sinking the building to reduce the height.


Alvin Williams said he had not hired an engineer yet but he thinks the water table on his property
is high which would make it hard to sink the building.


Bill Beckwith said the acreage range we have come up with is a good approach as it is
reasonable to allow greater usage, or in this case a higher building, as the acreage is increased.


Pete Frisina said that he developed both options based on the discussions at previous meetings
and he took into consideration the situation with pinewood studios, the property on SR 138, input
from the neighborhood when the zoning district was developed and the issue of competitiveness
and he recommends Option 2 as a good compromise because strikes a balance between the
various interests.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said if we were starting from scratch and this had been what you were
going to do six (6) moths ago instead of going back on what you said you were going to do six
(6) months ago that would make a lot more sense than doing it now.


Bill Beckwith said you are right but things have changed and if we would have known then what
we know now, we would have probably come up with something similar to what we are doing
now with acreage and building height.


Doug Powell said if we had time we would have developed a PUD zoning for a movie studio and
dealt with building height but we only had 27 days to look at Pinewood.


Tim Thoms agreed that we would have probably looked at increased acreage for greater building
height.


Alvin Williams said the movie industry will have a positive impact on the economy of Fayette
County.


Tim Thoms said we have to be careful what we do because we need to protect the County.







Page 7
May 16, 2013
PC Meeting


Alvin Williams said as a resident of the county he understand the concern.


Pete Frisina said he will take these two options back to the BOC for their input.


Tim Thoms asked Pete Frisina why he recommends Option 2.


Pete Frisina said he feels it is a good compromise and a 65 foot building on SR 138 may not be
appropriate but we need to be cognizant of the competitive nature of the business and that is why
we needed the input from Alvin Williams and he thinks it is a fair balance between all of the
concerns.


David Brill asked if it would be advisable to move the acreage in option 2 from 10 to 20 acres.


Pete Frisina said that would be alright.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said what difference it would make to her neighborhood.


Pete Frisina said we had to start at some acreage.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said these amendments are being done specifically for individuals and that
is not the way zoning should work and it should be done for what's best for the community not
individuals and this is not going to keep this building from being 50 feet tall as opposed to the 40
feet that was initially approved in her neighborhood.


Doug Powell said when you develop a new zoning district and you put it into practice you
sometimes have to go back and amend the regulations based practical experience.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said you don't even have anything built under this zoning and in less than
six (6) months you are already changing the ordinance.


Alice Jones asked if the County had communicated directly with the people in Dix-Le-On.


Pete Frisina said he had contacted David Brill as President of the North Fayette Community
Association and asked him to get the word out.


Alice Jones said the North Fayette Community Association has a meeting this Saturday and
could Alvin Williams attend the meeting.


Alvin Williams said he could attend the meeting on Saturday.


David Brill said he could come to the meeting and speak.







Page 8
May 16, 2013
PC Meeting


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said there are more neighborhoods than just Dix-Le-On that will be
affected by this development.


Pete Frisina said that he will take these recommended amendments to the BOC for their input.


***********************


Chairman Gilbert said he would entertain a motion to adjourn the meeting.


Tim Thoms said so moved .


Chairman Gilbert said the meeting was adjourned.


****** *****************


PLANNING COMMISSION
OF


FAYETTE COUNTY


AI GILBERT, CHAIRMAN
ATTEST:







THE FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION met on June 20, 2013 at 7:00 P.M.
in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Board of
Commissioners Conference Room, Suite 100, Fayetteville, Georgia.


MEMBERS PRESENT:


STAFF PRESENT:


Al Gilbert, Chairman
Jim Graw, Vice-Chairman
Douglas Powell
Bill Beckwith


Pete Frisina, Director of Community Services
Dennis Dutton, Zoning Administrator
Patrick Stough, County Attorney
Lem Miller, Marshal


Welcome and Call to Order:


Chairman Gilbert called the Plarming Commission Meeting to order. Chairman Gilbert
introduced Lem Miller of the Marshal's office and Dennis Dutton and Pete Frisina of PIarming
and Zoning. Chairman Gilbert stated all ofthe Commission Members were present tonight with
the exception of Tim Thoms. Chairman Gilbert recognized David Brill with the North Fayette
Community Association.


* * * * * * * * * *


OLD BUSINESS


Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Business District
regarding: building height.


Pete Frisina said that he had listened to the recording from the last meeting where the Planning
Commission questioned the language in the portions of the ordinance that used the terms
habitable space, occupied space and occupiable space and better understood what the Planning
Commission was saying. He said he since taken out all of these terms since they could be
interpreted to allow certain building to be unregulated in terms of height. He' said the
amendments included the measurement of a building with a truss roof. He added that he
presented these amendments to the BOC and explained the two options for building height and
acreage requirements in G-b and the reasons staff and the Plarming Commission had for each.


Jim Graw asked David Brill if Alvin Williams attended the last North Fayette Community
Association's meeting.


David Brill said Alvin Williams did attend the last meeting and explained his project and the
building height and there were no objections from those attending the meeting.







Page 2
June 20, 2013
PC Meeting


Jim Graw said if Alvin Williams needed more than 40 feet when we created G-B he should have
fought like the dickens to get more than 40 feet.


Chairman Gilbert said he needed the zoning more than he needed the building height at the time.


Doug Powell said what would have happened if Pinewood had come in first and we had given
them 65 feet.


Jim Graw said Alvin Williams would have gotten 65 feet as well but I don't know if he really
needs 50 or 65 feet.


David Brill said the 50 feet would give Alvin Williams the ability to build a two-story set and
maintain the five feet of clearance he needs for fire protection.


Chairman Gilbert asked David Brill if anyone at the meeting raised any objections.


David Brill said no one raised any objections to 50 feet at the meeting .


Jim Graw said I wished he had argued harder for 50 or 65 feet when we created the G-B zoning
district.


Chairman Gilbert said at that time I don't think we would have given him 50 or 65 feet.


Pete Frisina mentioned again that the measurement from a truss roof will be measured the same
way the county measures a house to the mid-point of an attic. He said this amendment will be
before the Planning Commission in a Public Hearing on July 2, 2013.


2. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Sec. 5-20., regarding: accessory structure
size in residential zoning districts.


Pete Frisina said the amend would allow a 3,600 square foot accessory structure in a residential
zoning on a lot with a minimum of five (5) acres and the residence would have to be a minimum
of 3,600 feet. He stated based on input from the Planning Commission at the last meeting he has
added a requirement that any accessory structure larger than 1,800 feet shall be allowed in the
rear yard only.


Doug said based on the five (5) acre requirement this aligns somewhat with the structures
allowed in A-R.


Jim Graw said the difference with this is this was requested by a property owner in a subdivision
that is zoned R-70 with two (2) acre lots and he doesn't think this is a good idea in a subdivision.







Page 3
July 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Tim Thoms said the plan doesn't show any benches or paths.


Donna Black said she would rather bring back a more detailed plan if the Planning
Commission would like to see it.


Pete Frisina said this request has been advertised for public hearing so the request would
need to be tabled if the Planning Commission wants to base their recommendation on a
new landscape plan or she could provide a landscape plan to the Board of Commissioners
and the question when do the developers have to implement the plan.


Chairman Gilbert said that he didn't want to pass something onto the BOC the Planning
Commission hadn't seen.


Bill Beckwith said he didn't think the Planning Commission needed to see a layout as
long as the intent is to provide the improvements.


Tim Thoms said he is concerned the improvements will not be made and no one will
maintain the landscaping.


Pete Frisina said the park will be turned over to the Home Owner's association at some
point and the developer would not be involved after that time.


Bill Beckwith said he is satisfied with the intent of the request.


Donna Black said the developer is interested in planting the landscaping in the fall.


Doug Powell said he did not want to put a timeline on these improvements with a
condition.


Chairman Gilbert said there does not seem to be a consensus on placing a condition on
the request so he would call the question.


The motion to approve the request was unanimous..*4.
Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III, Definitions and
Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Business District regarding: building
height.


Pete Frisina said these are the amendments that have been discussed concerning building height
in the G-B zoning district and consists of an amendment to the definition of building height, a
new definition for a soundstage and under the G-B zoning district it







Page 4
July 2, 2013
PC Meeting


adds a height limit of 65 feet for a soundstage, which is a use within the G-B zoning
district . He said the building height of a soundstage can exceed the 40 foot height limit
but for everyone (l) foot of building height over 40 feet the front setback increases eight
(8) feet and the side and rear setbacks increase five (5) feet if they are adjacent to a
residential or A-R zoning. He added that there are two options for acreage requirements:
Option I starts at 45 feet of height with a minimum acreage of 10 to 25 acres, 50 feet of
height with a minimum acreage of 25 to 50 acres , 55 feet of height with a minimum
acreage of 50 to 75 acres, 60 feet of height with a minimum acreage of 75 to 100 acres,
and 65 feet of height with more than 100 acres, Option 2 starts at 50 feet of height with a
minimum acreage of20 to 50 acres, 55 feet of height with a minimum acreage of 50 to 75
acres, 60 feet of height with a minimum acreage of 75 to 100 acres, and 65 feet of height
with more than 100 acres. He said staff favors Option 2 and the Planning Commission
favors Option 1.


Chairman Gilbert asked for public comments.


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said she is not in favor of the amendments including Options 1 or 2
nor is she in favor of a movie studio in her neighborhood (SR 138 area) as it is the
commercialization of her neighborhood and it will decrease their property values. She
said she distressed that this creeping commercialization is taking place in her area . She
said since this zoning is in place the minimum acreage for any increase in building height
should be 20 acres and she didn't know why this wasn't proposed in the first place
because the community was told one thing and now the County is changing the ordinance
in less than six (6) months of enacting the G-B zoning district. She said she feels this is a
backdoor approach to changing this when the County should have known this in the first
place .


Chairman Gilbert seemg no other comments brought the item back to the Planning
Commission .


Tim Thoms said the amendments say the side and rear setbacks will be increased if the
property is adjacent to a residential or A-R zoning, should the same be specified for the
front setback.


Pete Frisina said the front setback is adjacent to a road, not other property, so the front
setback will always be increased in this case.


Doug Powell said as he reads the amendments, the base height limit is 40 feet and if 1
want to increase to 45 feet and the property abuts residential or A-R zoning, the side and
rear setbacks will have to be increase accordingly and for every foot of building height
over 40 feet the side and rear setbacks increase by five (5) feet and the acreage has to
increase as well .







Page 5
July 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Tim Thoms asked why this building height increase is limited only to soundstages and
shouldn' t it apply to other buildings.


Pete Frisina said at this time it is a conservative approach as we have a request for
soundstages and no other uses have asked for an increase in build height in G-B, so he
would wait to address other requests when they are made.


Tim Thoms asked if the height is limited to 65 feet.


Pete Frisina said the charts under Options I and 2 stop at 65 feet.


Doug Powell said the County has in the past limited building height to 35 feet and now
we recently went to 40 feet in G-B and his concern with the citizens we worked with is
that he doesn't want to increase the height too much on SR 138 and that is why he
recommends Option I as it gives Alvin Williams the 45 feet he originally wanted and he
doesn't know what that will do for him competitively but he is not here to deal with
competition.


Bill Beckwith asked how many acres Alvin Williams has.


Pete Frisina replied just under 25 acres.


Tim Thoms asked if he could add to the property.


Pete Frisina said he would have to rezone more property.


Jim Graw asked approximately acres are available on SR 138 next to Alvin Williams '
property.


Pete Frisina said approximately 75 to 80 acres.


Jim Graw said he recommends Option I .


Chairman Gilbert said he recomm ends Option 2 because Pinewood changed everything
we knew about movie studios and he feels Alvin Williams needs to have some
consideration for building height because Pinewood was a game changer and 25 acres is
no small parcel ofland and I think 50 feet is fair for that size of property.


Bill Beckwith recommends Option I .


Tim Thoms made a motion to approve the amendments as presented with Option 1.







Page 6
July 2, 2013
PC Meeting


Jim Graw seconded the motion.


Chairman Gilbert called the question and the motion passed 4-1 with Chairman Gilbert
voting in opposition to the motion.


Pete Frisina said that staff is recommending Option 2 as it gives Alvin Williams (the first
G-B rezoning) the 50 feet he asked for in the workshops to keep him competitive with
Pinewood and other studios that may come into the County later.


5. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette Connty Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Sec. 5-16., regarding:
church or place or worship structures permitted above the height limit.


Pete Frisina said this amendment would exempt a church with a cathedral or vaulted
ceiling from the building height limit specified in the applicable zoning district. He
added that the references in this section referring to "human occupancy" were removed
based on discussions of the Planning Commission, as the Planning Commission felt it
was too vague and could possibly be applied to any structure where there was not area for
"human occupancy" or "habitable space" specifically pertaining to the prior consideration
of building height in the G-B zoning District.


Chairman Gilbert asked if anyone from the public had any questions or comments and
seeing none he brought the item back to the Planning Commission.


Tim Thoms said he was concerned with taking the term "human occupancy" out it would
allow someone to build a monument with no height restrictions, like a Washington
Monument.


Pete Frisina said at the last meeting the Planning Commission had a concern that it could
be applicable to any building without human occupancy, such as the soundstages we just
discussed to build at any height as the top of the soundstage is not designed for human
occupancy.


Doug Powell said the Washington Monument has human occupancy at the top.


Pete Frisina said it depends on what your definition of human occupancy is because per
building codes an area is not occupiable just because you can stand in it because it is not
set up for occupation where you can carryon normal activities.


Doug Powell said that a water tower in Senoia is proposed to be turned into a restaurant
and it is now a water tower that is occupied.







 


 


1


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2013 - 05 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 20. ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE 


VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS); TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN 


EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting in Article III, Definitions, the definition of 


Building Height in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 


 


Building Height.  The vertical distance of a building measured from the median height of the 


basement level or crawl space to the midpoint of the highest roof. The midpoint shall be 


measured from the ceiling joist of the highest floor level or from where the truss rests on the 


highest wall for open roof structures. For structures constructed without a basement or crawl 


space, the measurement will be taken beginning at the ground floor level. (See also Sec. 5-16. 


Structures Permitted above the Height Limit) 


 
Section 2. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by adding in Article III, Definitions the following definition: 


 


Soundstage. A room or building used for the shooting of film and video content. 


 
Section 3. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting in Article VI, Sec 6-26. G-B General Business 


District, D. Dimensional Requirements, 7. Height limit in its entirety and replacing it with the 


following: 


 


7. Height limit:  


a. 40 feet 


b. Only soundstages associated with movie/media productions in this 


zoning district may exceed 40 feet in height. The front setback 


shall be increased eight (8) feet for every one (1) foot of building 


height over 40 feet.  If the  side and/or rear yards abut a residential 



fjones

Typewritten Text

OPTION 1







 


 


2


or A-R zoning district, the setbacks shall be increased five (5) feet 


for every one (1) foot of building height over 40 feet. 


c. The required minimum acreage shall be increased based on 


building height per the table below:   


 


 


 
 


Section 4. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 5. .  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


 
Section 6.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 7.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Height Limit Required Acreage 


45 feet 10 -25 


50 feet >25-50 


55 feet >50-75 


60 feet >75-100 


65 feet >100 



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight







 


 


3


 


 So ordained this 25th day of July, 2013, by the  


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      STEVE BROWN, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 







 


 


1


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2013 - 05 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 20. ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE 


VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS); TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN 


EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting in Article III, Definitions, the definition of 


Building Height in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 


 


Building Height.  The vertical distance of a building measured from the median height of the 


basement level or crawl space to the midpoint of the highest roof. The midpoint shall be 


measured from the ceiling joist of the highest floor level or from where the truss rests on the 


highest wall for open roof structures. For structures constructed without a basement or crawl 


space, the measurement will be taken beginning at the ground floor level. (See also Sec. 5-16. 


Structures Permitted above the Height Limit) 


 
Section 2. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by adding in Article III, Definitions the following definition: 


 


Soundstage. A room or building used for the shooting of film and video content. 


 
Section 3. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting in Article VI, Sec 6-26. G-B General Business 


District, D. Dimensional Requirements, 7. Height limit in its entirety and replacing it with the 


following: 


 


7. Height limit:  


a. 40 feet 


b. Only soundstages associated with movie/media productions in this 


zoning district may exceed 40 feet in height. The front setback 


shall be increased eight (8) feet for every one (1) foot of building 


height over 40 feet.  If the  side and/or rear yards abut a residential 



fjones

Typewritten Text

OPTION 2







 


 


2


or A-R zoning district, the setbacks shall be increased five (5) feet 


for every one (1) foot of building height over 40 feet. 


c. The required minimum acreage shall be increased based on 


building height per the table below:   


 


Height Limit Required Acreage 


50 feet 20-50 


55 feet >50-75 


60 feet >75-100 


65 feet >100 


 
 


Section 4. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 5. .  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


 
Section 6.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 7.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



fjones

Highlight







 


 


3


 So ordained this 25th day of July, 2013, by the  


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      STEVE BROWN, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-05 Agenda File...eight Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-05-G-B Building Height Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-05-G-B Building Height Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-05-G-B Building Height Option 1

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-05-G-B Building Height Option 2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina or Dennis Dutton


Consideration of Ordinance 2013-06 adopting proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning 


Ordinance, Article V, Sec. 5-16., regarding church or place of worship structures permitted above the height limit.


On May 23, 2013, the BOC voted to send the issue to the Planning Commission for possible amendments to the zoning ordinance.  


 


A church wants to build a church with a cathedral/vaulted ceiling that exceeds the height limitation for the zoning district.  The 


amendment would add a cathedral or vaulted ceiling on a church or other place of worship to list of structures permitted above the height 


limit in Section 5-16. 


 


The Planning Commission voted 4-1 to recommend approval of the amendments.   


 


Staff agrees with proposed recommendations. 


 


Ordinance 2013-06 is located on page 14 of the backup material submitted with this request.


Approval of Ordinance 2013-06 adopting proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning 


Ordinance, Article V, Sec. 5-16., regarding church or place of worship structures permitted above the height limit.


Not Applicable.


Yes May 23, 2013


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, July 25, 2013



























































 


 


1


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2013 - 06 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 20. ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE 


VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS); TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN 


EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting in Article V, General Provisions, Sec. 5-16. in its 


entirety and replacing it with the following: 


 


Sec. 5-16.  Structures Permitted above the Height Limit.   


The height limit shall not apply to the following structures and architectural features: a cathedral 


or vaulted ceiling on a church or other place of worship, spire, steeple, belfry, cupola, dome, 


monument, water tower,  observation tower, chimney, smoke stack, conveyer, mast or aerial, 


heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) equipment, elevator equipment, roof mounted 


solar panels, roof mounted satellite/telecommunications equipment, and a parapet wall not 


extending more than four (4) feet above the roof line of the building. A freestanding flagpole is 


also permitted above the height limit, provided the total height does not exceed 70 feet.  Total 


height shall be measured from the finished grade at the location of the flagpole to the highest 


point.   


 
Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3. .  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 







 


 


2


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 So ordained this 25th day of July, 2013, by the  


 


 


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      STEVE BROWN, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-06 Agenda File

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-06- Church Building Height Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-06- Church Building Height Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-06- Church Building Height Backup-2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina or Dennis Dutton


Consideration of Ordinance 2013-07 adopting proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning 


Ordinance, Article V, Sec. 5-20., regarding accessory structure size in residential zoning districts.     


On May 23, 2013, the BOC voted to send the issue to the Planning Commission for possible amendments to the zoning ordinance.   A 


builder is requesting that the size for accessory structures be increased to allow a larger than 1,800 square foot accessory structure in a 


Residential zoning district.  Direction from the BOC was the lot would need to be a minimum of five (5) acres and the accessory structure 


be hidden from the street.  The amendments would allow a 3,600 square foot accessory structure on a lot with a minimum of five (5) 


acres and the size of the accessory structure could not exceed the size of the principal structure (residence).  In addition, any accessory 


structure that exceeds 1,800 square feet shall be located to the rear of the principal structure.  


 


The Planning Commission voted to recommend that the proposed amendments, as presented, NOT BE APPROVED since this size 


accessory structure is appropriate in A-R but not in residential zoning districts that make up the bulk of the subdivisions in Fayette 


County.  Staff also recommends that Ordinance 2013-07 adopting proposed amendments to NOT BE APPROVED. 


 


Ordinance 2013-07 is located on page eleven of the submitted backup to this request.


That Ordinance 2013-07 adopting proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, 


Article V, Sec. 5-20., regarding accessory structure size in residential zoning districts NOT BE APPROVED.  


Not Applicable.


Yes May 23, 2013


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Staff has concerns that are in agreement with the Planning Commission.  On July 2, 2013, the Planning Commission voted 4-1 that the 


amendments proposed in Ordinance 2013-07 NOT BE APPROVED.  Staff concurs with the Planning Commission's recommendation.


Public HearingThursday, July 25, 2013















































 


 


1


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2013 - 07 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 20. ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE 


VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS); TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN 


EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting in Article V, General Provisions, Sec. 5-20. 


Accessory Structures and Uses., C. Number and Size., 1. Accessory structures shall be limited to 


one (1) of the following options: in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 


 


1. Accessory structures shall be limited to one (1) of the following options: 


a. Two (2) accessory structures, per individual lot, that shall not exceed a 


combined total of 1,800 square feet of floor area or a combined total of 


3,600 square feet of floor area on a lot with a minimum of five (5) acres  


(see Total Square Footage.) The square footage of the largest accessory 


structure shall not exceed the total square footage of the principal 


structure.  One (1) of these accessory structures may include up to 700 


square feet of heated and finished floor area to be utilized as a guest 


house.  An accessory structure combined with a guest house, under this 


option, shall be deemed as one (1) accessory structure.  Under this 


option, an accessory structure located to the side of the principal 


structure shall not exceed 1,800 square feet; or  


 


b. One (1) accessory structure, per individual lot, not to exceed 1,800 


square feet of floor area (see Total Square Footage), or the total square 


footage of the principal structure, whichever is less.  This accessory 


structure may include up to 700 square feet of heated and finished floor 


area to be utilized as a guest house.  An accessory structure combined 


with a guest house, under this option, shall be deemed as one (1) 


accessory structure; or  


 


 


 







 


 


2


c. One (1) accessory structure, per individual lot with a minimum of five 


(5) acres, not to exceed 3,600 square feet of floor area (see Total Square 


Footage) or the total square footage of the principal structure, whichever 


is less.  This accessory structure may include up to 700 square feet of 


heated and finished floor area to be utilized as a guest house.  An 


accessory structure combined with a guest house, under this option, shall 


be deemed as one (1) accessory structure. Under this option, an 


accessory structure shall be located only to the rear of the principal 


structure.   
 


 
Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3. .  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 So ordained this 25th day of July, 2013, by the  







 


 


3


 


 


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      STEVE BROWN, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-07 Agenda File

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-07- Accessory Structure Size Limitations Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-07- Accessory Structure Size Limitations Backup-1

		Ord 2013-07 - Accessory Structure Zoning Ord-2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina or Dennis Dutton


Consideration of Ordinance 2013-08 adopting proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning 


Ordinance, Article VII, Sec. 7-1., regarding church and/or other place of worship and existing residential structures that do not meet the 


Conditional Use setbacks and/or buffers.   


On May 23, 2013, the BOC voted to send the issue to the Planning Commission for possible amendments to the zoning ordinance.  


 


A church is developing a property with an existing single-family residence and accessory structure.  As a church is a Conditional Use, 


setbacks and buffers are required and a variance is not allowed for a Conditional Use.  A portion of the existing single-family residence 


and the entire accessory structure are within the setback and a portion of the accessory structure is within the buffer. The structures or 


portions thereof, would need to be removed from the setback and buffer for the property to comply with the Conditional Use requirements 


for a church. 


 


The amendments would allow the existing structures to remain in the setback but not the buffer.  The use of these structures would be 


limited to the following uses under a Conditional Use for a church: administration, parsonage/residence, storage building, or detached 


garage. 


 


The Planning Commission voted 4-1 to recommend approval of the amendments.  Staff agrees with proposed recommendations.


Approval of Ordinance 2013-08 adopting proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning 


Ordinance, Article VII, Sec. 7-1., regarding church and/or other place of worship and existing residential structures that do not meet the 


Conditional Use setbacks and/or buffers. 


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, July 25, 2013























































 


 


1


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2013 - 08 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 20. ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE 


VI (DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS); TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN 


EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as 


amended, is hereby further amended by amending in Article VII. Conditional Uses, 


Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, And Commercial Development 


Standards, Sec. 7-1.  Conditional Use Approval., B. Conditional Uses Allowed:, 13.  Church 


and/or other Place of Worship. by adding the following: 


 


m. Use of Existing Structure:  When property containing legal structures 


(conforming or nonconforming), under the current zoning, is utilized as a 


Church and/or Place of worship under this section, the setback 


requirements only shall be reduced to the extent of, but only at the 


location of, any encroachment by the structures and said structures shall 


be considered legally nonconforming structures.  The use of these 


structures shall be limited to administration, parsonage/residence, storage 


building, or detached garage. 
 


 
Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3. .  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 







 


 


2


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 So ordained this 25th day of July, 2013, by the  


 


 


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      STEVE BROWN, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-08 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-08- Church and Existing Structure Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Ord. 2013-08-  Church and Existing Structure Backup

		Microsoft Word - Ord 2013-08 - Church & Existing Structure Zoning Ord








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina or Dennis Dutton


Consideration of Petition RDP-010-13 requesting approval of the Revised Development Plan for Ballard’s Terrace Subdivision to change 


the proposed Community Clubhouse containing a pool and cabana to a Landscaped Park consisting of 1.62 acres.


The subject property was rezoned from A-R to C-S on May 25, 2006 (Petition 1173-06) and consists 36 lots on 83.75 acres.  To date no 


homes have been built in the subdivision. 


 


The Applicant is requesting approval to change the proposed Community Clubhouse area containing a pool and cabana to a Landscaped 


Park consisting of 1.62 acres.  The revised Development Plan meets the requirements of the C-S Zoning District.  


 


The Planning Commission voted 5-0 to recommend approval of the Revised Development plan for Ballard's Terrace Subdivision. 


 


Staff agrees with the proposed recommendation.


Approval of Petition RDP-010-13 requesting approval of the Revised Development Plan for Ballard’s Terrace Subdivision to change the 


proposed Community Clubhouse containing a pool and cabana to a Landscaped Park consisting of 1.62 acres.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, July 25, 2013

































		Planning and Zoning- RDP-010-13 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- RDP-010-13 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Major Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign the annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document, 


as required by the United States Department of Justice and the United States Department of the Treasury.


The United States Department of Justice and the United States Department of the Treasury, on an annual basis, require the Fayette 


County Sheriff's Office to submit an Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document. 


 


The Equitable Agreement and Certification document provides a record of the total monies received from the United States Departments 


of Justice and Treasury, as well as an accounting of how the monies were spent for the purpose of law enforcement enhancement. 


 


This program enables Fayette County to participate in multi-jurisdictional drug investigations / prosecutions whereby those participating 


entities share the confiscated properties resulting from the convictions.


Approval of the Sheriff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign the annual Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification document, 


as required by the United States Department of Justice and the United States Department of the Treasury.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable Yes


This request is an example of the Board of Commissioners and the Sheriff's Office working together for the safety and wellbeing of all 


Fayette County citizens.


ConsentThursday, July 25, 2013





